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China Fortune Holdings Limited

PEREZERER AR

Corporate Profile
NG

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
sells and distributes mobile phones and digital products in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
code: 8040) on 16 February 2000, and successfully transferred
to the Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26 January 2004. The
Group has a strong shareholder background and well operational
and professional management team.

In 2007, the Group acquired Zhuhai Reminda Telecom
Equipment Company Limited which was a company selling
mobile phones and telecommunication equipments in the PRC.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
“Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and
services providers in the region.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Executive Director
Mr. Lau Siu Ying

Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Xi Zhi (Resigned on 17 April 2018)
Mr. Wang Yu

Non-executive Director
Mr. Bao Kang Rong (Appointed on 4 June 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Retired on 1 June 2018)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit

Dr. Lo Wai Shun (Appointed on 4 June 2018)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie (Resigned on 3 April 2018)
Mr. So Chi Kai (Appointed on 3 April 2018)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Man Kit (Committee Chairman)
(Appointed as Chairman on 4 June 2018)
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Retired on 1 June 2018)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan
Dr. Lo Wai Shun (Appointed on 4 June 2018)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Man Kit (Committee Chairman)
(Appointed as Chairman on 4 June 2018)
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Retired on 1 June 2018)
Mr. Lau Siu Ying
Dr. Law Chun Kwan
Dr. Lo Wai Shun (Appointed on 4 June 2018)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Wang Yu

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Retired on 1 June 2018)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit

Dr. Lo Wai Shun (Appointed on 4 June 2018)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

HONG KONG HEAD OFFICE

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung
Hong Kong
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China Fortune Holdings Limited
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Corporate Information
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CHINA HEAD OFFICE

Room 9008, Yong Xin Building
887 Huai Hai Zhong Road
Huangpu District

Shanghai, PRC

SHANGHAI OFFICE

Room 328, Xin Mao Lou

2 Tai Zhong Nan Lu
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone
Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong law:
Franki Ho & Associates

As to Bermuda law:
Conyers Dill & Pearman
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China

China Construction Bank
China Merchants Bank
ICBC (Asia)
CORPORATE WEBSITES
www.fortunetele.com
www.chinafortune.com
STOCK CODE

110
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Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

BROBCRBFEEETR

BEMIAEBER AR
5B
EFEKEE1835F

A Fe 221

B BLEm

BEUERZEAMEBLABERRAA

EEEE
RERBERME
(BEJ=F:1:IEI

REREEEMS
Conyers Dill & Pearman
FEAERRIT

H ISR 1T

B R IRTT
BERT

TR g8 M

ANCIER

www.fortunetele.com
www.chinafortune.com

IR 4D K 3%
110



Annual Report 2018

—ZT—)\F#H

Business Structure
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China Fortune

Holdings Limited

RERY

Investment

BRR%

Telecommunication

WiRRY

Resources

BE - WERMHERR
ESTILEBHHRR
Diversified business
development through
investment,
merger and acquisition

WEZRIR - FK -
AR R ERRE
Exploration, exploitation,

refining and asset investment

of mineral resources

EAREES RO
Trading and distribution
of telecommunication
equipment
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Corporate Milestones

TXER

FEB
18

The former trading arm of the
Group - Express Fortune Limited
(“EFL”) was founded by Mr. Lau Siu
Ying and his brothers in Hong
Kong.

WPEEEREABREBRIRE
BRAR ([RE] ) —AEEHF
ZEBHIEE -

JUL

Commenced Fortune
Telecom Group’s franchise
retail business in the PRC.

RPBHREEEEER L
HERTER -

EFL became one of Nokia’s
earliest authorised
distributors in the PRC.
RENAHBEDHEHEIE
ERERz— -

Completed the acquisition
of 51% shareholdings of
Synergy Pacific (Holding)
Limited (“Synergy Pacific”).

TRBBRERS (ER)
BRAR ([REBH])
2 51%0RHE

Listed on the GEM Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
8040).

RAEEIZPTRIER L
(Bt R5% - 8040) -

DEC

MAY

Fortune Shanghai was
acknowledged by Shanghai
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone Management
Committee as one of the
best enterprises for
commodity sales.

RIE K LBISRARN
REEZEGEABEMHE

A US$12 million syndicated
loan was successfully
arranged.

BN ZHE—T812,000,0005
TTZEEER -

BEERE -

SE

PT

A HK$160 million
syndicated loan was
successfully arranged.

B I Z2HE—T8160,000,0007%
TLZEEER




MAR

The Group has achieved a record
annual sale of 2.1 million sets of
mobile phones and a record net
profit over HK$60 million.

REBEIT4$42,100,0008 BB E5E
FNiEE3860,000,00078 LA F| By 4285 ©

JUN

For a consecutive year, Fortune
Shanghai was again acknowledged
by Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone Management Committee as
one of the best enterprises for
commodity sales.

BEE_F  RELEFEE LB
BRANEERZESEREMEE
BMEELEZ— -

JAN

SEPT

A US$16 million syndicated loan
was successfully arranged.
P Ih % HE—1816,000,000% 7T 2 $R[E

Bt

A °

NOV

Fortune Shanghai increased its
share capital from US$6 million to
US$25 million.

RIE /88 K BAN 6,000,000 704
ANZ25,000,000% 7T ©

DEC

Successfully completed the
acquisition of 100% shareholdings
of Synergy Technologies (Asia)
Limited, and the disposal of 46%
shareholdings of Synergy Pacific.

B35k B Synergy Technologies
(Asia) Limited,2 100% %4 & H & K
BEHZA6%HE o
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Corporate Milestones
TEERE

FEB

Contracted to acquire 51% stake in
Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment
Company Limited (BEiE 118 &8
H&MHEFR/AF) and completed the
acquisition in October 2007.

AR ERI T R IR AN TR R
NRIZB1%IRHE - A —RELES
A ERIE o

SEPT

Formed a joint venture with
TeleChoice International Limited for
the Nokia fulfillment business.

EilTeleChoice International Limitedfi{,
T—HAEEAF REHRETLRE

Name changed to China Fortune
Holdings Limited.

FARTERERRBRAF -

DEC

JAN

23

Listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock code:
110).

REBBRXMERET (K
5% - 110) -

Newly obtained the
nationwide distributorship of
Samsung mobile phones.
FRG=ERSEE s 2H
DIRHE

SEPT

Successfully obtained the
Fulfillment Distributorship
for all Nokia Stores in the
PRC.

RIS HEMAHESRE
BIEZBREE 0 $HHE -

Completed the
acquisition of 50.8%
interest in Sifa Mining
which has the right to
conduct mining
activities in a Celestite
(Strontium), Zinc and
Lead mining site
situated in the Hubei
Province, the PRC.

FRIDUREE A R e B
tE—ERED

(88) - SFRESE
TTERE R B R SR B R
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRES

Lau Siu Ying
N ;

Chairman and Chiewc Exé_éutive Officer'
FEFEFEHTE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present to our shareholders the consolidated results and
prospects of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

REVIEW

Looking back to 2018, the world economy maintained a modest
growth but its strength has slowed down. As the world’s second
largest economy, China’s economy was stable despite with
uncertainties. Under the influence of numerous factors such
as the trade tensions between China and the USA, resulting in
higher volatility in the financial market.

BALAR
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Although there was growth in the mobile phone market, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen and
it affected the Group’s performance in this area. Customer’s
focus is expected to shift gradually from the functionality of
mobile phone to the shopping experience and, in this regard, the
large mobile telecommunication chain stores have advantages.

In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the mobile phone
industry for decades, and the potential for mobile phone related
business development is surely enormous and sustainable. The
Group would continue to strengthen its major business area
including big data, mobile phone operating system and mobile
internet.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2018, all staff team up and move towards the Group's
goal of ranking as one of the largest and best wireless
communication and data products and service providers in the
region. The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2018 increased by approximately 28 times to approximately
HK$216.1 million when compared with the year ended 31
December 2017. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$7.8 million when compared with loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$111.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in China. As China is one of
the strongest countries in terms of economic performance, and
with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Although there is keen competition in the industry, development
potential is still enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen
our existing relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for
further cooperation opportunities.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRES

Apart from strengthening our current principal business in
the mobile phone business, the Group has entered into a
joint venture agreement to engage in blockchain technology
business during 2018. The Group are optimistic about the
future prospects of blockchain technology and its application
across the global communities as blockchain technology is
safer, more usable, more efficient and smarter than traditional
technologies. In view of the growing of blockchain technology
market, the Group will put more emphasis on the implementation
of blockchain technology business and its potential uses
across various industries and customers using such powerful
innovation.

Looking into 2019, we expect the growth momentum to
continue from our businesses, particularly from an associate of
our Group, which features services like trading of mobile phone
industry including trading in second-hand mobile phones and
provision of marketing services through an online platform which
connects the mobile phone manufactures, telecom operators
with physical retail stores.

In 2019, the Group will continue to actively seek and grasp
market opportunities and increase the depth and breadth of our
sources of revenue in order to generate satisfactory returns for
shareholders on a continuous basis.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all staff members and management team for their
dedication and contribution, and to our shareholders and
business partners for their support. Looking forward, the Group
will keep a closer watch on changes in the market and seize
development opportunities that can generate maximum value for
the Company and its shareholders.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
total revenue of HK$216.1 million, which was approximately
HK$208.7 million or 28 times higher than the revenue of HK$7.4
million reported in 2017. The increase in Group’s revenue was
primarily attributable to the increase in revenue from mobile
phone trading business in PRC.

The Group’s revenue was entirely derived from mobile phone
trading business in China in both reporting years. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, revenue contribution from
Zhejiang was HK$133.8 million representing 61.9% of the total
revenue of the Group, whereas Shanghai contributed HK$80.5
million or 37.3% of the total revenue of the Group.

The increase in revenue was attributable to expansion of the
Group’s mobile phone wholesale business network in various
PRC cities, such as Zhejiang, Shanghai and Chongqging,
higher demand and growth in the mobile phone market due
to customers expected to focus in 4G era mobile phone
for shopping experience etc., which benefit the Group’s
performances in this area and the revenue was increased

significantly.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately 6.4 times,
from HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to HK$2.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The increase of gross profit was attributable to the significant
increase in Group’s performance on mobile phone trading
business.

EEENWED

(=l 8 & Al =
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BE-Z-\F+-A=+—BLFE ~4£H
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5 IR 25216,100,0008 T BR T —+F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W AT

Although there was significant growth in the mobile phone
trading business during the year ended 31 December 2018, the
competition in the mobile phone retail market was very keen, as
a result, the Group’s gross profit margin was decreased from
3.9% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 1.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Such decrease was mainly due to
the increased bargaining power from telecommunications chain
stores and mobile carriers which purchasing mobile phone.

Other income

Other income was approximately HK$0.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of HK$0.1
million or 11.7% when compared to HK$1.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly due to
decrease of interest income and other miscellaneous income.

Other gains and losses

We had a net loss of HK$38.2 million in 2017 and a net gain
of HK$23.0 million in 2018. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the net gain consisted of recovery of bad debts of
HK$14.1 million, write back of interest payables of HK$11.9
million, an impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories
of HK$1.2 million and fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$0.5 million.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs were approximately HK$11
thousand for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$0.4 million or 97.3% when
compared to HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease of staff
costs and rental expenses during the current year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$14.9 million when
compared to the last year of HK$14.7 million, which was
maintained at a similar level.

BEHE-_T—/\F+-_A=+—HIEFEZ
BHE éf’f%%ﬁﬂﬂai‘ﬁ MEBEETE
MHBZHFIEETHR Bt AEB 2 EFMEH
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AUEHE R EEEE B EEN EF TR

Bt A

HE-Z-N\F+ZA=+—HLFEZH
ftb g A 49 £900,0008 L BB EZE-_F — £ F
+ZA=+—H 1% E 21,000,000 JT & >
100,000 758811.7% s Th EEHRFLA
W A B H th 4 T8 U AL A BT ER o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no finance costs was
recorded while HK$1.2 million of finance costs was recorded
during the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease of
finance costs was due to the waiver of debt assignments
entered during the current year. For details, please refer to Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of mining right

During the year ended 31 December 2017, owning to the re-
assessment on the valuation of mining right, an impairment loss
on mining right of HK$174.6 million and an impairment loss on
related plant and equipment of HK$9.0 million were recognised,
while no such impairment during the year ended 31 December
2018. For details, please refer to Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share of results of associates

For the year ended 31 December 2018, our share of results
of associates was a loss of HK$0.7 million (2017: loss of
HK$6 thousand), mainly because of a loss on disposal of an
investment held by an associate during the current year. As
the performance of the associate was unpromising, the Group
shared net losses of approximately HK$0.7 million from the
results of the associates during the current year as compared
to share of net losses of HK$6 thousand for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Income tax (expense)/credit

As set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements,
income tax expense amounted to HK$0.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, as compared to income tax credit
amounted to HK$41.1 million in last year. The turnaround of
income tax represented an offset of HK$41.1 million deferred tax
credit associated with the impairment loss in respect of mining
right in last year, no such income tax credit in current year.

EEENWED

AE A
BE-ZT-\F+-A=1T—"HLEE AEE
SRERA MBE-_FT—+tF+-_H=1+—H

1 E 8515 B & A AR1,200,00078 7T ° Bl & B A
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Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the factors set out above, the Group’s share
of profit amounted to HK$7.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, as compared to HK$111.7 million of loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company in last year.

Earnings/(loss) per share

The basic earnings per share was HKO0.85 cents as compared
to the basic loss per share of HK12.25 cents in last year. The
diluted earnings per share was HK0.85 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2018, while no diluted loss per share was
presented as the effect of all potential ordinary shares is anti-
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held various unlisted
equity investments and unlisted fund investment engaged in
developing mobile devices and operating system, manufacturing
and distribution of mobile devices in different jurisdictions and
engaged in different business.

The investments in unlisted equity investments and unlisted
fund investment are measured at cost less impairment as at 31
December 2017 because the range of reasonable fair values
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Group are
of the opinion that fair value of the investments cannot be
measured reliably. The unlisted equity investments and unlisted
fund investment were reclassified at financial assets as fair
value through profit or loss as at 1 January 2018 as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

Inventories

Inventories decreased by 95.5% from HK$2.1 million as at 31
December 2017 to HK$95 thousand as at 31 December 2018
primarily due to an impairment loss on inventories of HK$1.2
million was recognised. The Group will continue to apply strict
policy in inventory control in the future.
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Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables of the Group increased by 233.7%
from approximately HK$12.6 million as at 31 December 2017
to approximately HK$42.2 million as at 31 December 2018,
primarily due to (i) the growth of the Group’s business and
(i) an increase in prepayments to suppliers. No impairment
loss on prepayments paid to suppliers was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2018, while an impairment loss
on prepayments paid to suppliers of HK$24.9 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Cash and cash equivalents

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$26.6
million as at 31 December 2018 as compared to HK$18.4
million as at 31 December 2017, without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital, cash flow generated from its operation. During the
year, there was no material change in the funding and treasury
policy of the Group. The Group considers there is no material
potential currency exposure as the majority of its revenue and
expenses are derived and incurred in Renminbi in the PRC. It is
the treasury policy of the Group to manage its foreign currency
exposure whenever its financial impact is material to the Group.

Trade and other payables

The trade and other payables of the Group increased by 51.3%
from approximately HK$25.8 million as at 31 December 2017
to approximately HK$39.0 million as at 31 December 2018,
primarily due to an increase in other payables to third parties
along with its business growth.

Other borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s other borrowings
amounted to HK$14.9 million, while no other borrowings as at
31 December 2018. For details, please refer to Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Liquidity and gearing ratio

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$40.6
million or HK$0.04 per share when compared to HK$31.4
million or HK$0.03 per share as at 31 December 2017. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$12.6 million when compared to net current
liabilities of HK$10.6 million as at 31 December 2017. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group had a current ratio of 1.2
times (31 December 2017: 0.8 times). The gearing ratio of the
Group, defined as the ratio of the total long term liabilities to
the shareholder’s equity, was 0.43 and N/A as at 31 December
2018 and 2017.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of leasehold improvements amounted to HK$0.2 million
(31 December 2017: HK$1.4 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2017: nil).

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries or
associates

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries or associates.

Significant investments held by the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group
did not make any significant investments.
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Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has in total 25 employees
as compared to 15 employees as at 31 December 2017.
Employees were remunerated according to the nature of their
job duties and market trend. The Group provided staff welfare
and fund contribution to its employee in accordance with the
prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. There was no
material change in the remuneration policy, bonus scheme and
share option scheme during the year. The Group has a share
option scheme under which the Company may grant share
options to the participants, including directors and employees,
to subscribe for shares of the Company.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII”), there were more than 1.6 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end of 2018. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel
distribution models which include “national distribution”,
“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in the
mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile carriers
in past years and the issuance of 4G licenses have led to more
intense competition among the mobile carriers. By cooperating
with retailers, especially large mobile telecommunication chain
stores, the mobile carriers can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth
understanding of customer behaviors and spending preferences.
Through such cooperation, the customers will experience more
professional, convenient and integrated customer services.
Thus, large mobile telecommunications chain stores are
expected to become the main sales channel for the mobile
carriers for their bundled mobile phones.
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Looking back at 2018, on the eve of the launch of 5G, the
smartphone market became more mature, the international trade
conflicts escalated, and the overall economic development was
overshadowed with uncertainties.

Business Review
Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of trading, wholesale
and retail of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China.
As for the PRC market, its economy grew steadily in 2018. Yet,
the continuous development of mobile phone market business
model intensifying competition in the retail industry and the
uncertainties arising from the emerging US-China trade war
presented challenges the development of the Group’s operations
and performance.

Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
installing software, etc, in purchasing a mobile phone. In the
4G era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications and the
Internet also led to rapid development of value-added business
which requires the retail channels to advance from a pure sales
platform to an integrated service platform. In this regard, the
large mobile telecommunication chain stores have advantages.
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Mining Business

The Group has once commenced mining site exploitation system
in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the expiration of
a 5-year mining operating permit on 25 September 2012, Sifa
Mining obtained a renewed mining operating permit for 2 years
(the “2-year Permit 2012-2014") from the Ministry of Land and
Resources of the PRC (% AR FEMEE +ZR) (“MLRY),
under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out exploration
activities only, but not exploitation activities. The 2-year Permit
2012-2014 was expired on 25 September 2014.

On 27 April 2015, a mining operating permit was granted by
MLR for a term of 2 years from 25 September 2014 to 25
September 2016 under which a restriction was added that no
exploitation activities were allowed but only exploration activities.
Such restriction imposed on the renewed mining permit was
basically the same as the previous mining permit which was
approved by MLR in 2012 whilst the application for mining
exploitation permit is a continuing process.

In the course of applying for further extension after expiry on
25 September 2016, the Department of Land and Resources of
Hubei Province of the PRC (the “DLR”) issued an announcement
(the “DLR Announcement”) published on 29 December 2017 in
respect of the deadline of application for renewal of the expired
mining operating permit.

In the DLR Announcement, the DLR informed the owners of
the expired mining operating permits to furnish the application
procedures for the renewal before 28 February 2018. If the
owners fail to do so, they are responsible to deregister the
mining operating permits before 31 March 2018 by themselves
or the DLR will de-register the permits instead. The Group
was unable to furnish the application before the deadline and
therefore, instructed the Group’s lawyers to clarify with the DLR
the Group’s situation as to whether the Group would be allowed
to submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
future.
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Despite great efforts to ascertain with the DLR by the Group’s
lawyers, the Group had been unable to receive a clear and
favourable reply in this regard. As a result and prudent measure,
a full impairment of the mining right of HK$174.6 million and
related plant and equipment of HK$9.0 million had been made
whist all the related deferred tax liabilities of HK$41.1 million had
been derecognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Despite the fact that the above mining right will no longer have
any bearing on the financials of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, the Directors strived to pursue the ultimate
stance of the DLR in respect of the above mining right in the
interests of the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group, through
its lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone calls
and resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018 for the
clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR did not
make reply to the Group’s enquiries. The Group’s lawyers have
come to the opinion that the mining right has already expired
and will be unable to be renewed and hence be deregistered
eventually. For the avoidance of doubt, such opinion will not
affect the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Prepayments to suppliers and related legal proceedings

For the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$24.9 million was recognised for the prepayments in the total
sum of HK$33.7 million made to two mobile phone suppliers,
one in Guangzhou and another one in Chongging by a subsidiary
of the Group in Shanghai.

The said subsidiary commenced arbitral proceedings and, on 14
January 2019, has obtained the final arbitral award of, amongst
others, HK$19.8 million, being the prepayment against the
Chongqing supplier. In the course of such arbitral proceedings,
a sum of HK$7.9 million has been repaid by such supplier whilst
enforcement proceedings will be commenced against such
supplier.
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The said subsidiary also commenced legal proceedings for
recovery of the prepayment of HK$14.8 million against the
Guangzhou supplier in the People’s Court in Guangzhou, China.
After three hearings, the outcome has yet to be determined.

No impairment was made in respect of these two prepayments
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Prospects and Outlook

In the coming year, the Group expects the uncertainties in the
PRC economies, in particular those arising from the ongoing
US-China trade conflict, will continue to affect consumption and
retail segment. Affected adversely by the external uncertainties
such as trade dispute between the PRC and the US, the
economic growth of the PRC is likely to slow. However, the
continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled by a high
internal consumption. As the world’s biggest handset market,
there were more than 1.6 billion handset subscribers in the PRC
with an increase of over 90 million subscribers in 2018 which
benefit from preferential mobile internet traffic policies. There
were around 1 billion 4G users among the total subscribers,
and forecasted to increase much further in the near future. On
the other hand, there were more than 1.1 billion mobile Internet
users which implies that there are huge business opportunities
in both mobile application and mobile commerce. China has the
world’s largest 4G network and continues to strive for further
expansion. With a goal to add new 4G base stations last year to
improve signal coverage in buildings, elevators, and other indoor
space, as well as on railways and expressway. Since the Group
has been in the related mobile phone industry for decades, big
data, mobile phone operating system and mobile internet would
be surely the key business areas that the Group is interested in.
As the technology for 5G telecommunications networks matured
and was ready for takeoff demand for related equipment has
remained robust. Blockchain technology is another area that
the Group is pursuing. The Group is actively looking for further
opportunities which will further enhance the shareholders’ value.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 55, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampoa Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a master degree of science in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth
Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren
Association Limited.

Mr. WANG Yu, aged 53, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. BAO Kang Rong, aged 55, was appointed as an Non-
executive Director of the Company in June 2018. Mr. Bao holds
a bachelor degree in mathematical economic management
from Shanghai Normal University and an executive master
of business administration from China Europe International
Business School. Mr. Bao has vast experience in business
management and telecommunications business development
and is currently one of the partners of Eagle Funds (& &
%), which was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
in 2012 focusing on investments in Mobile Internet, Internet
of Things and Internet+industry. Furthermore, Mr. Bao is the
director of Shanghai Communications Industry Association ( /&
BIETTEWE ) , the Vice Chairman of Shanghai Communications
Manufacturing Industry Association ( /8 BEREERE), a
member of Shanghai Youth Federation ( /85 A€ ) and a
member of Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs Association ( E/8 5

FEEZRBE) .

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 53, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.
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Mr. LAM Man Kit, aged 43, is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam
graduated with a bachelor degree of Business Administration
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has worked in an
international audit firm and various public and private companies
in Hong Kong, with over 20 years of financial, accounting
and auditing experiences. Mr. Lam has worked in the finance
department of the Company from 2007 to 2013, with his last
position as company secretary and financial controller of the
Company. Mr. Lam is a company secretary of Mayer Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1116), and a company secretary of Fuguiniao Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1819).

Dr. LO Wai Shun, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2018. Dr. Lo
holds a bachelor degree in sciences and a master degree in
philosophy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and
a doctorate degree in Physics from Brown University, United
States of America (“‘U.S.A.”). He is also Adjunct Professor of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Visiting Professor of
Peking University (School of Innovation and Entrepreneurship).
Dr. Lo is currently a general partner of DL Capitals, an angel
investment fund focusing on disruptive and exponential
technologies and has over 20 years of extensive experience
in various business fields including intellectual property
commercialization, business models innovation and technology
transfer. Dr. Lo had served as a non-executive director for
various listed companies in Hong Kong from 2000 to 2005.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FOK Wai Ming, Eddie resigned as the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company on 3 April
2018.

Mr. SO Chi Kai, has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company in April 2018. Mr. So is also the Financial
Controller of the Group and the authorised representative of the
Company. Mr. So holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Honors)
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. So has worked in an international
audit firm and various public and private companies in Hong
Kong. In addition, Mr. So has extensive professional and
senior managerial experience in financial reporting, financial
management and company secretarial matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code,
except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of
Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2018. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, one
Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of whom all are independent as defined under the
Listing Rules. Independent Non-executive Directors constitute
more than one-third of the Board. The Company has received
from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. Brief biographical particulars of the
Directors are set out on pages 22 to 24.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.
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Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 31 to 36.
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
Seven Board meetings were held in 2018. At the Board
meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including the
Company’s annual and interim financial statements, proposals
for final and interim dividends (if any), annual report and
interim report. At least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors
for all regular Board meetings and all Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
All minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are available to all Directors for inspection. During
the year, the Chairman of the Company has held a meeting
with all the Independent Non-executive Directors without other
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Executive Directors presented.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in

2018 is set out below:

Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi

(resigned on 17 April 2018)
Mr. Wang Yu

Non-executive Director
Mr. Bao Kang Rong
(appointed on 4 June 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
(retired on 1 June 2018)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan
Mr. Lam Man Kit
Dr. Lo Wai Shun
(appointed on 4 June 2018)
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire
by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:

Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Lam Man
Kit, an Independent Non-executive Director, whom has been
appointed as Remuneration Committee Chairman on 4 June
2018. The Company Secretary of the Company serves as
the secretary of the committee. Minutes for the meetings are
sent to the committee members within a reasonable time after
the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year FTWNEZEeRFACEANERSZEENELE
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members ERIBERAT
are as follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE/
Members 8 R
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Lam Man Kit (Chairman) MBS (F/E) 2/2
(appointed as Chairman on 4 June 2018) (R=ZZF-NFENAOAEZ(TRBELE)
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor BB A& 1/1
(retired on 1 June 2018) (RZF—/VFNA—HEE)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan FERiE - 2/2
Dr. Lo Wai Shun* BHiEE L 0/0
(appointed on 4 June 2018) (R=ZF—NFNAYHEZE)
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying B/NE e 2/2
* No Remuneration Committee meeting was held after Dr. Lo Wai * RBBEEITR_S—N\FAANBEZEAR

Shun was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on

4 June 2018.

BIFATESR BERTFNEESeeR-

Two meetings were held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 180. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 206. Share options
granted under the Company’s share option plan are disclosed
on pages 199 to 200.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms
of reference setting out the committee’s authority and its role
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Lam Man Kit, an Independent
Non-executive Director, whom has been appointed as Audit
Committee Chairman on 4 June 2018. The Company Secretary
acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources
are made available to the Audit Committee when independent
legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.
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TRERRES

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year. The
Company Secretary prepared full minutes of the audit committee
meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached. The

ERZEE@RFACRITMASH - RAIME
ERAEZZEGEA L CE TR CH L
A BRERZIRE GRLBEERNRER

draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all committee ERS B A ERBERNEEAT2BEZES
members within a reasonable time after each meeting. B -

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well ERZEeRNFACHANERSZEENELE
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as GRZBERAWT

follows:

Membership and Attendance

Members

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Man Kit (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 4 June 2018)

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
(retired on 1 June 2018)

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Dr. Lo Wai Shun
(appointed on 4 June 2018)
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During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to
adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2018. The
Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year REZEENFACHENERSZEENELE
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members EERIBERET
are as follows:
Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE/
Members 8 R
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) BINESE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Wang Yu TFREAE 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 1§ v 1/1
(retired on 1 June 2018) (RZF—=/NVFNA—HREE)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan ERIRIE LT 2/2
Mr. Lam Man Kit M 2/2
Dr. Lo Wai Shun* BuEm L 0/0

(appointed on 4 June 2018)

* No Nomination Committee meeting was held after Dr. Lo Wai Shun
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 4
June 2018.

Two meetings were held in the year, in which members of
the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and discussion of appointment of non-
executive directors.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their
audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their
opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 74 to 82.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
1 June 2018, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$950,000. In addition,
HK$98,000 was charged for non-audit service, which was for
interim review service.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FOK Wai Ming, Eddie resigned as the Group Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company on 3 April
2018.

Mr. SO Chi Kai (“Mr. SO”), has been appointed as the Group
Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”) on 3 April 2018 and is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting, financial management
and company secretarial matters.

The Company Secretary is mainly responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and its committees to prepare agendas
for meetings and to prepare and disseminate meeting material
to the Directors and committees’ members in a timely and
comprehensive manner; ensuring every Director complies with
the Board’s policy and procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations; and ensuring accurate records of Board/committee
meeting proceedings, discussions and decisions are recorded.
According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. SO has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year. His biography is set out on page 25 of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FRAMEWORK

The Group’s existing corporate governance framework and the
significant risks of the Group were summarized as follows:

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring the implementation of
an effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledged that the risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Main features of the risk management and internal control

systems

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main

responsibilities are summarised below:

Board

To evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring the implementation of an effective
risk management and internal control systems;

To oversee the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis;

To perform an annual review to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

To oversee the management/responsible party (“responsible
management”) in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control

systems.

Management

To design, implement and monitor the risk management and
internal control systems;

To perform risks identification assessment which might
threaten the strategic objectives set;

To review the risk and risk level and advise on any matters
which might be raised by employees and the Group;

To assist external consultant to analysis and appraise the
adequacy and efficiency of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems; and

To coordinate all the risks management and activities
process and in compliance with Listing Rules and report
periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant
Risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group were summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

e |dentified the risks through discussion with the
management. Risk Assessment Questionnaire was used to
document the risk identified by the responsible parties.

Risk Assessment

e |dentified the existing controls and analysing risks in terms
of consequence and likelihood in the context of those
controls. The risk analysis considered the range of potential
consequences and how likely those consequences were to
occur. Consequence and likelihood might be combined to
produce an estimated level of risk.

Risk Response

e  Categorised the risks into low risk, medium risk and high
risks;

e Determined the strategy to handle the risk; and

° Developed the risk register and internal control audit plan
and determined the frequency of review and control testing
on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e  On-going communication of monitoring results to the Audit
Committee which enables it to assess control of the Group
and the effectiveness of risk management during the year,
including:

— Risk questionnaires completed by the management,
risk register and internal audit plan; and

—  Fact finding report with recommendations on the
review and testing of internal controls on certain
operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group’s
internal audit function is performed by the management of the
Company, including analysing and appraising the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the
Company to:

e Perform the risk assessment based on management
evaluation on identified area and report the findings and
recommendations to the management; and

e  Conduct various agreed upon reviews on material controls
and perform testing of internal controls on certain operating
cycles and areas in accordance with the Company’s
Internal Control Audit Plan.

The Company’s considering the recommendations on the
internal audit findings identified by the external consultant
and expects to complete the implementation of the aforesaid
recommendations within 6 months.

During the year, the Board conducted an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were adequate and
effective during the year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is fully
aware of its obligations under the new Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 and the Listing Rules. The
Board has adopted a policy which contains the guideline to the
Directors and officers of the Company to ensure that the inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated to public in an
equal and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts
or other forms of advantages from any person or organisation
doing business with the Group can be accepted by any
employee. Business partners and customers are reminded from
time to time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the
Group from accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on company website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains a company website at
www.fortunetele.com where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual reports
and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices
and other information is available for review by shareholders and
other stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
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General meetings with shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2018 annual general meeting (“2018 AGM”) was held on 1
June 2018. The attendance record of the Directors at the 2018

AGM is set out below:

Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi

(resigned on 17 April 2018)
Mr. Wang Yu

Non-executive Director
Mr. Bao Kang Rong*
(appointed on 4 June 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
(retired on 1 June 2018)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan
Mr. Lam Man Kit
Dr. Lo Wai Shun*
(appointed on 4 June 2018)

* No general meeting was held after Mr. Bao Kang Rong and Dr. *
Lo Wai Shun was appointed as an Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director, respectively on 4 June 2018.

The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2018 AGM.
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including
a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company
(*AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

()  Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
() not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

(i)  The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

(i) Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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(iv)

Do s =

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting.
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must

In order for the Company to inform

state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The

Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the

shareholders’ questions.
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China Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present the Environmental, Social, and Governance (‘ESG”)
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Reporting Period”).

This ESG report is prepared with reference to the Appendix
27 - Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The information disclosed in this report is derived from the
result of internal statistics and analysis of the Group’s internal
management systems.

The Group is committed to fulfilling its environmental and social
obligations while striving for economic growth and creating value
for the Company’s shareholders. We focus on strategic priorities
in terms of maintaining a peaceful natural environment, creating
a harmonized working environment and sustaining an ethical
business environment. Through this ESG report, we hope to
continually refine our corporate strategy for sustainable business
growth, and deliver long-term value for our stakeholders.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are distribution and trading of mobile
phones and related accessories, development of marketing
and after-sales service network (“Mobile Phone Business”)
and mining and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals
(“Mining Business”). Since there were minimal activities in the
mining business, this report only covers China Fortune Holdings
Limited, Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd and
Zhejiang Aoying Information Technology Co., Ltd..
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group continues to maintain the relationships and
communicate with its key stakeholders. We have identified our
employees, customers, investors, shareholders, suppliers and
communities at large as our key stakeholder groups. In daily
business, we communicate with different key stakeholders
through various channels such as conferences, electronic
platforms and public events so as to understand the concerns of
various stakeholders. To formulate the operational strategies and
ESG measures, the Group takes into account the expectations
of stakeholders and strives to improve its performance through
mutual cooperation with the stakeholders, resulting in creating
greater value for the community.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

We value your feedback on this report. If you have any feedback
or suggestions, please contact us at info@chinafortune.com.

A. THE ENVIRONMENTAL

Our strategy towards the environment is to minimize the
impact on the environment with sustainable operations.
We place strong emphasis on environmental protection
by maximizing the efficiency of resources and reducing
pollution. Our sustainable practices encourage employees
to be more considerate of the environment by savings on
energy consumption and use of materials so that impact on
the environment and natural resources can be minimized.

A1. Emissions

Given the nature of our businesses, we do not
contribute directly to greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emission, discharges into water and land nor the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
However, we recognised that consumption of
electricity, paper and petrol at workplaces and by
motor vehicles account for our major indirect GHG
emissions.
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GHG Emissions

During the year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas
emissions reduced approximately 9.12 tonnes from
42.94 tonnes in 2017 to 33.82 tonnes in 2018. The
detailed summary of GHG emission for the year is
shown as below:

BERBHEK

FRN AEEZBAERBENREH
ZT—F 742 94MB R 499,121 S
—F—)\F 233.82MF - F R EREE
PRz A ZED R T -

Intensity - tonnes per
square feet of

Scope of GHG CO2 Emission (Tonnes) gross floor area

BRERBEE — & b BBk (W) BE-W/STHREEEDR
2018 2017 2018 2017

Scope 1 - Electricity consumption

HE1-FNHEE 28.44 39.31 0.00500 0.00691

Scope 2 - Petrol consumption

SE2—URHR 3.33 1.47 0.00081 0.00036

Scope 3 - Paper Consumption

SEI-HERHERE 2.05 2.16 0.00032 0.00038

Total GHG emissions

MERBAEHNRE 33.82 42.94 0.00613 0.00765

Notes: P A -

1. Petrol consumption: according to purchase volume of
gasoline and diesel of company vehicle;

2. Electricity consumption: according to electricity bills
received by the Company;

3.  Paper consumption: according to purchase volume of
paper.
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To reduce the energy consumption and the amount
of carbon emission, we have implemented a number
of measures to mitigate such consumption and
emission, We reinforced our management of energy
conservation in our offices through the ventilation
system with a stabilized room temperature at 25
degrees Celsius, as well as reminding employees
to turn off any computers, printers, light and other
office equipment that are not being used. We try
to use daylight wherever possible, and choose
energy efficient equipment during procurement. We
encourage our employees to travel by public transport
to reduce carbon footprint. We advocate a green
lifestyle by growing plants in the office. Awareness of
environmental protection among our staff was raised
through the promotion of green office culture.

Relevant important laws and regulations including
the “Energy Conservation Law” and “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China” are
strictly complied with.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in our
operation. Non-hazardous wastes from the Group’s
operation is mainly the paper waste. During the year,
the consumption volume generated by the Group is
shown as below:

Category of Non-hazardous waste

BEBEEVER e (1)
2018

Paper Waste

MREEY 0.43

Quantity (Tonnes)

BRIEERBELREENRE  KRME
Bt — RV EER DB W8 L
B&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ%%“*mkﬂ§
S ERIE G ERK25E - W IR EE
1E,\73A7ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'a?$ﬁﬂE@H‘“ FTED
e B R E AP IRA  ANEE
BEREIR KMRATEATER
?mﬁﬁ B3 WA BRI R EIE B gL R
HE o HMXBEIEEFRLAHR
@Iﬂ'uﬂ9m3M0ﬁﬁ%m%E
ENEEEYMIRELEEE T
BREEHZERAELIRRETIN
RIRE B

BPIERETHEBEZERLAEN
BIE [EARERE] M [ EARKEM
BIRBIREE] -

BERRY

REBZEEVEEEAEEEY-
AEBEEELECEERENETEAR
MERBEEY -GN NEBEEZER
SEHRET

Intensity - Tonnes per
square feet of
gross floor area

RE-W/SYHFREEER

2017 2018 2017

0.45 0.00007 0.00008

The Group has implemented paperless processing in
its internal communications. In order to reduce paper
consumption, we encourage employees to use duplex
printing and copying. And therefore led to a drop of
0.02 tonnes of total paper waste in 2018.
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A2. Use of Resources A2. BEREH

Energy saving tips and guidelines are in place as a BMIZBE L ERIER RIES - AR
direction on the efficient use of resources throughout AEEERBEEERFERER &M
daily operations. Our strategy is to reduce resources B R B R B RA S M E A BB IR Bk
used in daily office operation, through wise use of BEMI R EREE UREERERE
energy and water, wastage and paper consumption, BEBEYER RLTARERERE
as well as promoting the practice of recycle, reuse, EmR > BERAEBIEMFERANE
reduce, and replace. We recognise the importance TR o B PR R B 528 A1 MY 2 8 LA 3 2R
of transitioning our operations to bring upon more BAEEEENEE -

sustainable options.

Use of Resources

ERER

Fuel Efficiency We are committed to replacing old vehicles with more fuel-efficient vehicles.

RE R BB BEAEETRRE AR AR ITE-
We encourage employees to use telephone conference whenever possible to reduce
the carbon footprint of business travel.
BPBEEERAIITERA TEREFESH AR Z IR E I -

Materials We encourage to use automatic pencil leads and ball pen refills.

L BPBEEREBMECRERRFEEN -
We encourage employees to bring their own water bottles instead of using paper
cups.
BB E & B #OR AR AL
We promote wise use of toilet paper.
BAHEBN AR L R 4R
We advocate the use of double sided printed to reduce paper wastage.
BMREEMITEN AR DR B AR -

Water We make sure there is no leakage of taps to conserve water.

i BATHER K BESE I MOR/KAER R K -
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Use of Resources

BERER

Energy

a3
BE R

Resources

&R

We maintain the room temperature at 25 degree Celsius to converse energy.
A9 =B8R TE AEK25E AR 488 R

We keep the air ventilation system off if the room is vacant.

BANFEREEARERBRRZAZ-

We encourage employees to save energy by turning off lights and electronics when
not in use.

BB EEESAORER YN TEREEEELRE

We remind employees to turn off lights, computers, printers and other office
equipment after work.

BFREREN TIIRBEEEY B ITEREEMRIERE

We keep track on the power consumption record and take measures when there is
significant increase in consumption.

P B R T ) H RS £k K b0 3R B KUK FE 1 N B BRERAE A

We encourage employees to reuse plastic bags, recycle glass bottles and aluminum
cans.
ZMEEEEEABE DYERER Rin s -

Recycling of printer cartridges and toners is implemented.
BPEBROUITEIRES RIS -
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Energy consumption

During the year, the Group’s consumption in petrol and
electricity were:

RIBE-HEKER

&

REROH 7%
FRAEEZTHERENHERES:

Intensity - Tonnes per
square feet of

Energy Type Quantity Unit gross floor area

B R Rl gE By BE-W/S¥AREAER
2018 2017 2018 2017

Petrol 1,412.70 620.92 litre 0.34 0.15

i AT+

Electricity 45,145.50 62,392.70 kWh 7.93 10.97

EW)| F FLBS

Due to business purpose the petrol consumption EREBRALZ WMEHRZAMHE

during the reporting period has been increased
approximately 791.78 litre compared to that in 2017.
Regarding the electricity consumption, the Group has
reduced 17,247.2 kWh, from 62,392.7 kWh in 2017 to
45,145.5 kWH in 2018.

Water consumption and use of packaging materials

The Group’s water consumption is minimal and no
issue in sourcing water for the group’s operation had
been noted in the reporting period.

Besides, due to the nature of business, the Group did
not involve any use of packaging material and hence
the disclosure is not applicable to the Group.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Since our core operations are confined to the office
environment, we do not make significant impact on
the environment and natural resources. Still, adhering
to our policy, we will review in due course to seek for
continual improvement, if any.

A38.
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B. SOCIAL

B1. Employment

We believe that our employees are valuable assets to
the company. In order to build a harmonized working
environment, we recognise the importance of fostering
a supportive workplace for employees to grow with the
company together.

We firmly believe in the principle of equal opportunity
for all employees and this is addressed in the staff
handbook as our employment policy. We ensure that
our recruitment, promotion, compensation, training
and dismissal practices are on a fair and equal basis.
We do not tolerate any discrimination based on race,
religion, sex, marital status, age, national origin, or
other considerations deemed inappropriate by local
laws. We strictly comply with relevant local laws and
regulations relating to hiring, compensation, dismissal,
working hours, rest periods and diversity.

We respect and protect the legal rights of employees
by abiding to the local laws and regulations including
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China”,
Kong.

as well as “Employment Ordinance” in Hong

B2. Health and Safety

Safety always comes first throughout the operation
and is the basis of success. Our health and safety
approach is to minimize occupational hazards and
provide a safe working environment. We have set up
procedures for our employees to follow in case of
typhoons and severe rainstorms to ensure their safety
during the journey from and to work. Access to and
egress from workplace is maintained unblocked. First
aid box with emergency contact is in place. We did not
find any work fatality cases during the reporting period.
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Apart from physical health, we also take care of the
mental health of our employees as well. Paid annual
leaves higher than the statutory requirement are offered
to enhance the work-life balance. In addition, we have
lunch gathering during special festivals such as the
winter solstice and the Christmas Eve. We arrange
birthday parties for our employees to maintain their
spirit in a pleasant working environment.

In order to comply with the “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances”, all employees are covered by insurance
against any accidents.

Development and Training

The Group encourages continuous learning within
our employees and puts emphasis on their holistic
development. All new joiners are required to undergo
an induction briefing regarding corporate culture,
company’s policy and procedure, health and safety,
basic knowledge about the Group’s operation and
system. Measures on professional training, enhancing
leadership and talent team building are available
for employees to achieve their personal goals while
growing with the Group.

A performance appraisal is in place to review the
employees’ performance annually. This provides an
opportunity between the company and the employees
to communicate so that we can meet employees’
expectations and objectives.

B3.
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B4. Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
workplace. Stringent hiring procedures and processes
are enforced to verify the legal proof of age before
commencement of work. The Group has strictly
complied with the Labour Contract Law of PRC, the
Hong Kong employment laws and other relevant laws
and regulations to avoid child or forced labour and
other potential irregularities. We do not adopt any kind
of forced labour including prison labour as supplier.
During the reporting period, we did not find any issues
with child and forced labour.

B5. Supply Chain Management

One of our procurement principles towards
sustainability is to ensure that our procurement system
can manage any environmental and social risks in
the supply chain. In order to maintain sustainability
as well as quality, our strategy is to build a long-term
relationship with suppliers. We continue to monitor the
existing suppliers’ performances to ensure their quality
and performance is up to our standard. New suppliers
have to undergo assessment and evaluation before

being adopted.

Green procurement has been our procurement
approach. In the process of sourcing materials, we
require that components used by the suppliers be
in full compliance with environmental protection
requirements, in accordance with national and industry

standards.
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B6. Product/service Responsibility B6. Em REEE

Product and service

Quality is the key component to take shape of
customer satisfaction. With regard to product
quality, we ensure that all products should comply
with national standards including China Compulsory
Certification (CCC) in terms of testing certificates
issued by accredited laboratory.

We value customers’ feedback, as this is the driving
force for our continual improvement. Once a complaint
is received, we will take prompt actions to investigate
the issue and carry out remedial action plans.

Customer privacy

Customer information is treated as confidential data in
the Group. Only core staff of relevant department are
granted permissions to access according to different
hierarchy and locations. The Group has the right to
executive disciplinary actions on employees who
violate the rules stipulated in the employee handbook.

EmkR%
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Intellectual property

The Group endeavours to protect intellectual rights
by different measures. We actively monitor any
infringement in terms of counterfeit goods across
the country with people’s court and public bodies.
In addition, we renew the registration of any expiring
trademarks and patents based on the need of our
business. We strictly abide by relevant laws and
regulations, including the “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China”.

Advertising and labelling

Systematic review and approval process is in
place before advertisement launch to the market
to safeguard accurate presentation and protect
customers. Appropriate safety warnings are attached
on the product packaging for consumers’ information.

We are in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations including “Advertising Law of People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests”. There are no breaches of laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters in connection with our
products and services provided during the reporting

period.
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B7. Anti-corruption

BS8.

Anti-corruption is the cornerstone of the business and
sustainability, which at the same time the most material
topics rated by our stakeholders. Stringent policies
are stipulated in the employee handbook in relation to
compliance with the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”,
such as soliciting or accepting any advantages in the
business operations, to ensure employees’ actions
abide by our internal regulations. Procedures are
established to minimize corruption risks related to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in the
business operation. Internal control mechanism is in
place for monitoring. We did not have any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices during the
reporting period.

Community Investment

As a corporate citizen, we are responsible for driving
a positive impact to the community. We create job
opportunities and promote economic growth in
the local communities through our business and
operation. We encourage employees to participate
actively in voluntary services during their leisure time
to help people in need. We are under the process of
formulating a policy on community engagement.
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EEGHRES

The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associates
are set out in notes 41 and 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 83 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi (resigned on 17 April 2018)
Mr. Wang Yu

Non-executive director:

Mr. Bao Kang Rong (appointed on 4 June 2018)

Independent Non-executive directors:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (retired on 1 June 2018)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Mr. Lam Man Kit

Dr. Lo Wai Shun (appointed on 4 June 2018)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) and bye-law 87 of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Bao Kang Rong, Dr. Lo Wai Shun
and Mr. Wang Yu shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election,
respectively.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors, the chief executive and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

Exgs 54

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
R NExAE (TRI%EE]) PREEERAE (W)
Beneficial owner

BB A

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)

EFRVTEFTRBUFATETZEHEER
BARRZARMAIARFESRZB L

EERTHRARRROREBRRG 2
B

RZF-N\F+-A=+—H EF 1TBEH
LRESFHEANRARAREEEZE (EER
FEHFEBEE ([FFRBE G ) FEXVED)
ZhBh kAR T HEAARERE S LG &
BIEXVEF R 7R F8N MM AR AT REEME
RXHMAERAE (B ks ke (2
RREREESLAEGOIARRGME Fk
SIEER 2B MR R ) - WARARRBIRIE
BHEAAEGROELMGFE 2 ECHOER
FMokR: SARBEB LT ARERTETES
R BESTR (MRESTA]) Mg AR R KB
KA S MORR T

A REEREEO10ETZEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
shares held the Company
e #T HEXQARBERT
ZERHAE REABDHE
188,300,013 20.52%
267,996,285 29.20%
456,296,298 49.72%




Note:

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31 December
2018.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The following
table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
during the year ended 31 December 2018:

Date of Exercise
grant period
BHAH e
Category | - Directors
FE-E%
Mr. Lau 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018
g%4E —T-=F% ZZ—=-FftAt=H=Z
+tA+=H “Z-\FtA+—H
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi (Note 1) 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 t0 11.7.2018
BEZEE (M) =% ZZ-ZFtA+ZHEZE
tA+=H - )\5tA+—H
Mr. Wang Yu 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 t0 11.7.2018
TREE —T-=F% ZT-=-FtA+=-HZE
tA+=z8 ZE-NFtA+—H
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Note 2) 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018
ok Bk £ (feE2) =% ZZE-ZFtATZHZE
tA+=H “Z-\FtA+—H
Total for directors
EE
Category Il - Employees
ZN1E-EE
Employees 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 t0 11.7.2018
E& —E-=% —Z-=ftAt-BZ
tA+=H - )\5tA+—H
Category Il - Consultants
FNE-BH
Consultants 12.7.2013 12.7.2013 to 11.7.2018
B —T-=% —Z-=FtA+=-BZ
tA+=H - )\5tA+—H

Total for all categories
A SRl Et

B

NNSE S B

|2 FBENEE B RRM

120 - FARBARABBRERBE-F N\
FHoAS+—BILFE2EH:

Exercise Outstanding Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
price at beginning during during at end of
per share  of the year the year the year the year
£X
BROEE FAEHKRTE  FRTE EREX i RATE
HK$
BT
0.255 8,000,000 - (8,000,000) -
0.255 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) -
0.255 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) -
0.255 1,500,000 - (1,500,000 -
11,500,000 - (11,500,000) -
0.255 100,000 - (100,000) -
0.255 300,000 - (300,000) -
11,900,000 - (11,900,000 -




Notes:

1. Mr. Luo Xi Zhi resigned as executive director of the Company on 17
April 2018.

2. Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor retired as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 June 2018.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Related Parties Disclosures” and the
Sections headed “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2018 or at any time during the Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed as at 31 December 2018.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the HRANTIRIERE S RS G0 E3361E 17
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at BEIFEREELZMI R R-2ZE—N\E+_A
31 December 2018, the following shareholders had notified the =+—B ARABIERTINREERQTD B
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the TR EE B -

Company.
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company KAGEREEHO.108 T2 ZHE K
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
e #T (hERQARERT
FTERRER &6 EBEREE RAZEDEH
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 20.52%
Elbes 2RERFER (1)
Beneficial owner 267,996,285 29.20%
BB A
456,296,298 49.72%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 20.52%
FEEE XEHEREs (M)
Notes: M 5
1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company 1. ZERMAECEBERELESIMEKYZ AR

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests 2.
in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future
2000 Limited.

Future 2000 Limited$5 5 * Mz A FlA —EZ#
EARA R EREAZIEABEEELE K
B REFe

BEBFRBEKRN ARFTELIEBER
Future 2000 LimitedZ B K& 17 E=92 —
A ERZERE WS AR AR RIS EEE

ED



CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 69% and 37%, respectively, of the Group’s
total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 70% and 23%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 26 to 46 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the
Company may grant share options to the participants, including
directors and employees, to subscribe for shares of the
Company, details of the scheme is set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, which are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, downturn pressure on the overall economy of
the PRC and price competition from other market players. The
Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
and review of material business decisions involving material risks
exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group’s currency risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Board also reviews
monthly management accounts, capital structure and key
operating data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitor and ensure that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group
engages professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the
latest developments in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational developments.
The Group also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any
unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems covering business,
financial and compliance risks of the Group and is satisfied
that such systems are effective and adequate for the current
operations of the Group.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The
Group pursues this business approach by managing its business
prudently and executing management decisions with due care
and attention. The Group keeps on reviewing environmental
issues in its operations from time to time.

For details, please refer to section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 47 to 59 of this annual report.
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REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s
risk management, internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 37 of this annual report. The
related party disclosures as set out in note 37 of this annual
report do not fall under the definition of “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The connected transactions undertaken by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

1. On 10 May 2018, Chongging Yuanjia Communication
Equipment Company Limited (“Chongging Yuanjia”®), a
51% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Purchase Agreement | with Chongqing Supplier |. Pursuant
to the Purchase Agreement |, Chongqing Supplier | agreed
to sell, and Chongqging Yuanjia agreed to purchase 53,000
mobile devices at the total consideration of RMB19.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$23.2 million). Completion
of the Purchase Agreement | has taken place on 1 June
2018.

BEREEEEMN

ZZBECBRHAKERMNZ 2T RAIRK
CWEEREIWASE 2 EREE  NEE
UG HRREE - BERRBECERNARE

?:fi@—/\i‘i— A=t—RLEEZEE

TR B MWK -

?Eﬁ“ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ}

BEALXRS

BE_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—"HLFEZH#A
BALRGHBERAFRMEI7 - BE-F
—NFE+ZA=T—BLEFE HRRFEHWH
HAB7TZBEALTRBERAELIF ETARAE4A
BERATREZ [HERXS | S [HE@RERS] -

=
i
t

X5

BE_ZT-\F+_A=+t—BLFE &X&
BHETZRERIZWT

RZZE-NFRA+TH EFEZRER
ﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁ A([EEEz]) (ARAEH
51%Em o MEAR) MEEHERIFI L
BEEHZ - BEEERR ERHERIF
EHEMERERZREEESS00068%F)
%%'@REEAE%mepmm(m
B R #928,200,000/ L) - BEREIE R
ZE-N\FRNA—HBEERK

—



2. On 15 June 2018, Chongging Yuanjia entered into the
Purchase Agreement Il with Chongqging Supplier Il. Pursuant
to the Purchase Agreement Il, Chongging Supplier Il agreed
to sell, and Chongqging Yuanjia agreed to purchase 95,000
mobile devices at the total consideration of RMB50.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$58.8 million). Completion
of the Purchase Agreement Il has taken place on 15 June
2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 20 July 2018, Chongging Yuanjia and Chongging Supplier |
and Chongaging Supplier Il entered into the Master Agreement,
pursuant to which Chongqging Supplier | and Chongging Supplier
Il agreed to, among other things, supply the mobile devices, and
Chongaing Yuanjia agreed to be supplied the mobile devices
for a term commencing on 20 July 2018 and ending on 31
December 2020 (both dates inclusive).

The principal terms of the Master Agreement are as below:

Date: 20 July 2018
Parties: Chongaing Supplier | and Chongaging Supplier Il as
sellers Chongging Yuanjia as buyer

Duration: From 20 July 2018 to 31 December 2020

The following sets out the Proposed Annual Caps under the

Master Agreement:

For the period from 20 July 2018 to
31 December 2018:

RMB60,000,000

For the year ending 31 December 2019: RMB120,000,000

For the year ending 31 December 2020: RMB120,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount
of the continuing connected transactions of purchase mobile
phone by Chongqging Yuanjia from Chongging Supplier Il was
approximately RMB385,000 including 16% value-added tax
(equivalent to approximately HK$459,000).

Chongqging Supplier | and Chongging Supplier Il have given
credit period to Chongging Yuanjia of 60 days after the issue of
the value-added tax invoices, despite the usual credit period of
less than 30 days in the mobile trading industry. Furthermore,
Chongqging Supplier | and Chongaging Supplier Il have given
Chongaing Yuanjia the exclusive rights to distribute their own
brand mobile devices nationwide in PRC exclusively.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that the terms of the Master Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are fair and
reasonable, and it is in the interest of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole to enter into the Master Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder.

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to
report on the continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No material significant events occurred after the reporting
period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all the
staff for their outstanding contribution towards the Group’s
development. The Board wishes to sincerely thank the
management for their dedication and diligence, and they are
the key factors for the Group to continue its success in future.
Also, the Group wishes to extend its gratitude for the continued
support from its shareholders, customers, and business
partners. The Group will continue to deliver sustainable business
development, so as to meet its business objectives for 2019 and
realise higher values for its shareholders and other stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEE RS

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 28152239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEREZRERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 218, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
EETHEEP115E
kL2548
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

1.

The mining activities related assets and liability

In our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group’s mining operating permit was expired during the
year. Up to the date of our audit report of 30 March 2017,
the Group was preparing for the application of renewal for a
mining operating permit. There was no sufficient appropriate
audit evidence for us to assess the appropriateness of
the assumptions used by the directors in assessing the
recoverable amounts of the Group’s mining right and
related plant and equipment, and the carrying amount of
the related deferred tax liability (“the mining activities related
assets and liability”) as at 31 December 2016. Limitations
on our work on the carrying amounts of the mining
activities related assets and liability as at 31 December
2016 remained unresolved in our audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017. Any adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the mining right and related plant and equipment as at
31 December 2016 would have consequential impact on
their related impairment losses of HK$174,589,000 and
HK$8,965,000 respectively recognised for the year ended
31 December 2017, and on the related deferred tax liability
of HK$41,116,000 fully derecognised for the year then
ended. As a result, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
as to whether the impairment losses recognised and the
derecognition of the related deferred tax liability for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were appropriately estimated.

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is modified for the
possible effect of our audit scope limitation in 2017 on
the comparability of the related 2018 figures and the 2017
figures in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Prepayments to suppliers

In our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, we
were unable to obtain the financial information regarding
two suppliers to assess the recoverability of the Group’s
prepayments to them amounted to HK$33,688,000 at
31 December 2016. Impairment loss of HK$24,903,000
on the aforesaid prepayments was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2017. Due to the
limitation on our work as at 31 December 2016 as stated
above remained unresolved in our audit of 2017 financial
statements, any adjustment to the carrying amount of
the prepayments as at 31 December 2016 would have
consequential impact on the amount of impairment loss
recognised in the year ended 31 December 2017. As a
result, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether
the amount of impairment loss recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was appropriately estimated.

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is modified for the
possible effect of our audit scope limitation in 2017 on
the comparability of the related 2018 figures and the 2017
figures in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS BEREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional EREZEEAEREEENEZHE AN
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the EEERARB G ERRERAEE Y
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EHE - EFTELEEEERBESEASBEHRE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the RENESRFETREE - EE T Y2551
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our BEBEBER-

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREZSHE EECERNNEEEMSE

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods

FHRERHEEZRERR

Please refer to Notes 4 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
R A M RE N4 K8

The Group’s revenue was derived from sales of  Our procedures on the revenue recognition relating to sales of

mobile phones. goods included:
EEECZREREBHEFEHE - EEREHERHEE WA BRET IR

()  Inspecting sales and purchase agreements, on a sample
basis, to understand the terms of delivery and assess
whether management recognised the related revenue
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies,
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

() WEREEEWR UATHRIMERLFEEEERER
B EEEZSTBRISEEETEA LRI R EER
B A s

(i) assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions
recorded during the financial year had been recognised
properly by inspecting the transactions selected with
relevant underlying documentations;

(i) HMERAERMBREEARIEHERIEELZR/ER X
RUABBXHBREMEE RS
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Key audit matters

HREEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EECERNMNEERRSEE

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods
FHRERBEEZREER

Management inspected the contract terms and
determined the amount of revenue recognised
during the year is dependent on the point in time
when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally when the goods are delivered
to and the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to customer.

EEERTANKRN TETFARR KNGS
EERTEREETELPZ2RRAB (—RAEMR
RNFEPURBREIEBAZEBREBZEEFE) M

):F_o

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the
Group and errors in the recognition of revenue
could have a material impact on the Group’s
results.

SRR EERAPRAREZFEDHNEY &
%lZEK&M&W SHERREAYE BERECE
BEKEARTE-

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(iv)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of Jr

assurance conclusion thereon.

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions
before and after the financial year end had been
recognised in the appropriate period by comparing
the transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentations; and
MEAEMRFERNERZHERIRECRNEE A
R ARASUEBEXHERIEE RS &

reviewing if there are any significant adjustments to
revenue during the reporting period, understanding
the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentations.

EHREPA RSB EELERERAR THAMH
BzBH WABRBXHLEARFEE-

FHRAZHMER
EXAHEMENAE -HMENBR &2

AIFRAENER ETEREAMBRERN
BERNLE D OSBEI RS -
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinances and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

B M % A
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate Number: P02410
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Share of results of associates

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
that may be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising

on translation from functional
currency to presentation
currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

Y &
HERA

E7

H Ay A

Ho iy 25 K 5 18
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SRR AR FE SR 2 BB B 1R

DIHBE QR Z XA

BrRPrISBLATE M, (E51R)
FrisH (F) %

FERM(ER)

Hofth 2 YA AT R EL 1R
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MR ERBREREINER

MELEZERER

FEZEAKA

EIEFREEM, (BR) :

EN/NETEZ 2 DN
TR I 1R 25

ERFREDEAKA:

EN/NTEZ 2PN
FEFR B MR

SREFN (BB
BN

Notes

i 5E

10

18

12
11

16

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
216,104 7,436
(213,966) (7,147)
2,138 289
917 1,039
22,984 (38,245)
(11) (400)
(14,928) (14,718)
= (1,208)

- (174,589)

(647) 6)
10,453 (227,838)
(148) 41,116
10,305 (186,722)
(80) 6,258
10,225 (180,464)
7,799 (111,714)
2,506 (75,008)
10,305 (186,722)
5,916 (105,255)
4,309 (75,209)
10,225 (180,464)

0.85 cents 1l

(12.25) cents 1lli

0.85 cents 1l

N/A A58
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2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TERT FET
Non-current Assets RBEE
Plant and equipment B I 3 1 17 5,709 42
Mining right PR 18 - -
Investments in associates BE AR ZIRE 19 498 1,145
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAERZ
through profit or loss HEEE 20 5,350 -
Available-for-sale investments AfEERE 20 - 2,449
Club memberships eHMEE 21 877 888
12,434 4,524
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories 58 22 95 2,098
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R K&
H b & W BR 3K 23 42,182 12,641
Amount due from an associate FEU — FEI B A R 2 BB 37(a) - 2,382
Amount due from a non-controlling EUW —FEMEB AR —%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEHE S A% 3R 2 FRIE 24 3,435 3,616
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEE AER
through profit or loss L UHBEE 20 536 -
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBEHRE 20 - 1,251
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEED 25 26,563 18,364
72,811 40,352
Current Liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables ENE SRR R
H i FE A BR 3K 26 39,039 25,804
Amount due to a related party B — R BEEA T ZE 37(b) 6,493 165
Amounts due to non-controlling FEASHBY /8 2 &) FE 42 ) M A% 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries Z PR 24 8,296 3,671
Tax payables eI REIE 6,415 6,409
Other borrowings HibfgE 27 - 14,878
60,243 50,927
Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) REBEE (&&)FE 12,568 (10,575)
Total Assets less Current EERERRBER

Liabilities 25,002 (6,051)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMEMRRT

At 31 December 2018 R—ZE—NFE+_-_A=+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FE&T FET

Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital J% X 28 91,778 91,778
Reserves 18 (51,191) (60,369)

Equity attributable to owners of ZAATEE ABEEER

the Company 40,587 31,409
Non-controlling interests FEE I 1 #E 2 (83,151) (37,460)
7,436 (6,051)

Non-current Liabilities kRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities BEMRIBEE 30 - -
Government grant B 1 Bh 31 5,700 -
Amount due to a related party ER—REEALT A 37(b) 11,866 -
17,566 4
25,002 (6,051)

On behalf of the Board REESF®
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
2 NERE EFREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

E EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

meEE SR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

At 1 January 2017

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation from functional currency
to presentation currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares (Note 28)

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018 as
originally presented

Initial application of HKFRS 9
(Note 2a)

Restated at 1 January 2018

Profit for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation from functional currency
to presentation currency

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Imputed interest on the loan from
a related party (Note 37(b)ii)
Lapse of share options (Note 29)

At 31 December 2018

R-F-+%-A-H

FRER

EVEECEE EE
fEtzERZE

FREAAUA

BEER ()
RZE-+E+-A=1-A

R-F-\¥-A-R
(BR%25)

HRERERHBHLE
59% (Fri2a)

R-F-N\F-A-REj

EREH

By ERAEERSIEE
fELZERZR

EREEARA

RE-2BEALZERZ
BER & (MiEs7)fi))
BRI (H220)

RZ5-NETZA=1-R

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAREEAER
Share Non-
Share Share Special  Translation  Statutory option Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE FEHE
Bx  BBEE  HHRE  BERE  iRES fE  HfERE  BHER 4% s EREE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn TEn TER AR FhL TEr TEn
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i (Note iv) (Note v) (Note vi)
(k) (mski)  (ski) (k) OFsRv) ()
83,206 395,962 2,481 62,370 30,132 991 - (468,479) 106,663 37,749 144,412
- - - - - - - (1,714 (11,714) (75,008)  (186,722)
- - - 6,459 - - - - 6,459 (201) 6,208
- - - 6,459 - - - (111,714)  (105,269) (75,209)  (180,464)
8,572 21429 - - - - - - 30,001 - 30,001
91,778 417,391 2,481 68,829 30,132 991 - (580,193) 31,409 (37,460) 6,051)
91,778 417,391 2,481 68,829 30,132 991 - (580,193) 31,409 (37,460) 6,051)
- - - 79 - - - 1,369 1,448 - 1,448
91778 417,391 2,481 68,908 30,132 991 - (578,824) 32,857 37,460) (4,603)
- - - - - - - 7,799 7,799 2,506 10,305
- - - (1,883) - - - - (1,889 1,803 80)
- - - (1,883) - - - 7,79 5916 4,309 10,225
- - - - - - 1,814 - 1,814 - 1,814
- - - - - (991) - 991 - - -
91778 417,391 2,481 67,025 30,182 - 1,814 (570,034) 40,087 33,151) 7436
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEZBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share
capital in excess of nominal value.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into
presentation currency.

The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable
to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior years’
losses of the PRC subsidiaries.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve represents the imputed interest portion calculated by
the effective interest method on the loan from a related party which
was provided on interest-free.

P b :

(0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

i aBERBRASEBLEEZRE-

Bl (R4 FE T U RE B B & B 2 B F (B B A 2
AR —NAANFETEEEARS KRBT ET
ZEOEERZE®E-

BERBERRERABIEB CEE AEFEEN
MERRIEEMEE 2 KR -

EEECHEERNAEBEEPEARLNE
(ThE DRI 2B AR ZBRBEGIRAREZ
i WA AREHEZETRENBEARBESF
EZEE-

BRERELFRECROERRTEZEBREZ
RNFE FBERGEE P RERM EAR AR B
ERNR RS2 T BEE— SR -

Hi#EER R SRHZRE —REEALZ
ERNERNEAFEZEEN D -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before income tax

Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Interest income
Fair value loss on held-for-trading
investments
Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of mining right
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of inventories
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of prepayments paid
to suppliers
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade and
other receivables
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of available-for-sale
investments
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised

in respect of prepayment paid
to a supplier
Share of results of associates
Recovery of bad debts
Recovery of write down of inventories
Write back of trade payables
Write back of interest payables
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of plant and
equipment

REED
BRETSBATE R, (&18)

égﬁng.
MEBRX
) B HA

RIFEEREZAFEEBE

BAFESABGEZ
MBEEZRAFEEBE
LR TR TR 2 R EE 1R

IR BERER

T 7] (R 7 ST AN 2 TR 3R0R
MR 2 BB R 18

ShEME B AR K
H A W AR SRR AR
B & 1R

LAl E R E R
BB &5 18

SLERES B R R HERR
1B &5 18

A —RHERINZ
B RIRRER
B B 1B 1]
DB ERT 2 RE
Yo 1= 322 Bk

T & OB 3 [

e E 5 BR 3 =
JE A I S A =

BN EEzITE
HERE KR EE R

2018
HK$’000
TR

10,453

(45)

519

1,221

23

(363)
647
(14,083)
(155)
(3)
(11,922)
211

2017
HK$'000
TAET

(227,838)

1,207

(156)

102

174,589

24,903

1,627

2,614

8,965




Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables

Tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net cash inflow for acquisition of
a subsidiary
Purchase of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Proceed from disposal of plant and
equipment
Purchase of plant and equipment

Annual Report 2018
— &

—\F#H

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

EELSEBCEERERE

FERL (M)

JE W 75 B 3R e EL A e U AR 3R
(#m),/md

J&A 5 5 B R S B b A BR K
g, ORd)

E SRR

R B A A
REFH

REREH

B WF 8
WE-—FENBARZ
BEeRAFE

BERAFVEAABRZZ
MBEE

HEME RREMERA

BERELRE

Decrease/(increase) in amount due from  J& Uk — & B & A B 30 E

an associate A, (1)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ BEFEESFE, (FFA)
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEeFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(13,497) (14,129)
882 (385)
(29,706) 1,086
25,267 (13,267)
(47) -
(17,101) (26,695)
45 156

260 4
(1,550) -

- 6

(13) 6)
2,382 (2,382)
1,124 (2,226)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GmeRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Advance from a related party

Repayment to a related party

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

BMEEH

JREAF B 8 1 R SEHE Il 1%
IR 2 R IEHE

KB —RBEEALZEBR

BE-—RBEALZHRA

BT EBRPTE R

MEZHFEREFE

RERRESEWENFR

FAZRERREEEY

=

o 8 7 8

I

FRZBERREEEY

ReRRESEBUEHRIN

Re LRTERF

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
4,809 419
34,145 -
(14,291) (1,131)
- 30,001
24,663 29,289
8,686 368
18,364 16,000
(487) 1,996
26,563 18,364
26,563 18,364
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and
trading of mobile phones and related accessories,
development of marketing and after-sales service network
and mining and processing of celestite, zinc and lead
minerals. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and
principal associates are set out in Notes 41 and 42 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

—REE

KRB AREBRE-NN—FRQFE
(i) TaREIMR T 2R ER
REl ARAZBRONRBEABMEXFHAE
BRAR ([BERAT]) LMo ARF 2B AT
RBEERERAT AN REBE RS FHMK
3 2 ‘A AlFuture 2000 Limited » KR &2
AMMEREREEEEMB 2 UL TEF R
[RRIER] — 8N

ARBZYEEESARE (ARE]) -
HRARRTINEE LT RTERR 4
EBHmERGABIT ([ET]) 25

KRB BIREERAR AEE T EHE
BRDEREEREEE RABME 4 3
BRTIGHEERERREEE  UARKES
HERMEANAREMIES EX 2
BRBIREZEHE NG ZEBDBIEHNER
G B REM 41 R42
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e S R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2018

The Group has adopted the following amendments

to HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018.
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
First-time adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications
to HKFRS 15)

2.

RRAEEBMBHREER ([FEY
BwmEER])

(a) BRAFAT - IETE BB HE
BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

AEEERKBEGHABAEG ([F
BEFEAE ) B2 THFEMB
BELR (BREAEEBMBHREE
8- FEETER ([&ZBGHER])
KR 2E5] RFETREAXKA
AER—F—N\F—A—BRZREH

Bz FREAEER -

—T-WEE BEM B mEER
“E-REES F1RER
BEMBRS BREMER
BUZFEHRE WHRSER

—EF-REFE BE G EAF285H
“E-AFEY 2B REELF
BRERGRSE RRELRZEE
A2 F RN

BRRBHREER URHAERNRRS

F2RZEFT ZNBREE

BEMBHREEN SBTA

FO5R

ERMBREER REEPALAMNE
%155

BRMBHREER REBEPANMNE
1552157 (BB BREER

F15H2EE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
removing transition provision exemptions relating to
accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the periods to which the
transition provision exemptions related have passed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture
Capital organisation’s permissible election to measure
its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group is not a
venture capital organisation.

RRAEBMBHREER ([FEY
BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) IRAAFET - AEIEETE B BHE

BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

=
(%)

TE-NEFEZZ-AFENEEYM
BREENFERE-FBYBR
EREABIR BT BRRAT B
BE|EERA

RIFEBEBRBRMNZFETY
3505 X T B RE A 2 TRZE R A e
T ER - AR BREFEME
WEERFIRZIER] BRRAER
MBHEEA ZETMETEHD
REAMAHER S MEEH 2 BE
fER ST F .

ROZSEALBEEZSEMHHRERE
REE RESEBEGEXHEER
WEIRGE AR

TERE-NFEZZE-AFENEEYM
BHREEAZFERE-FBEHE
RISE28R 2 18R]  RIME AT REE
bEZRE

RIEFEREBRERMNZFETY
35 05 X 1 B RE A 2 TRZE R A e
T ER - A BREF et
ERF28 R E AR RAE QT
REZER ZIERTBBR R E A
BAEREQAVEAEREARNA
BEER AHEBHBERFHEE

CENRIELBRREE-

ROZSEALEEZSZMHHRRE
FE RARAKEILIFRREAR
s -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. MAEEBMEBE LD ([E5H
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) R ERR ) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) FRAFTT - AENGET & BB B E

January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have
any cash-settled share-based payment transaction
and has no share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of
the accounting for financial instruments: (1)
classification and measurement; (2) impairment
and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption of
HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 has resulted in
changes in accounting policies of the Group.

BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

=
(%)

ERMBHREERH2R 2B — U
BRORERNRRZ 2T ERTE

BRAERRIARE R IFFBIRITEHE
SRENBD RERNRZFTENT
& RNEANRETRAFEEERHE
B RERNRRZ A RER
BHARRSEEEEREREEN
B dn A BB AN SRR MR 2 1B RT 2
BETRERTE -

RMZFEILEHZFMBEHRRE
e RARAEEYEITMNRS
BEZUABRNDBERNKZR S TF
BN RERNRZ X ZHIENHR
mERBAFREEFML-

ERMBREENFR -SMITA
() ZBTRZDERE

BEAPBEREERFIRN T
—N\F—A—BAERBZF
EEMBAR BB G ERIE395%
cRIAE - BRAMIE EE&ES
MITASHCMBE=EFE: (1)
DERETE QRERQE FE
FFeRZTE—NF—A—H#"
RMNEAVBREEAFEIRD
BYAEBSHBRLREY-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(M)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continueq)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it eliminates
the previous HKAS 39 categories for financial
assets of held to maturity financial assets,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has
no material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies related to financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments. The impact of HKFRS 9 on
the Group’s classification and measurement of
financial assets is set out below.

2. RABRAMBHREEN (1EEY
BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) BRAFAT - EIETE BB HE
BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

(%)

ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA
(%)

() ZBTRZABER:E (&)

BEMBHRESENFORTEER
B ERERETHBAR
ZHER - DBENRFERE MR
ERRAFEF AR ([RA
FEFARSD ZVBAER
Sh-mBEEERRERS Bz
RFEEHEEREMEEBA
BR-RIFGELNBRGE
AC RV B R o LL 5N - B8 B 75
SEAFORRERT B G LA
FIREME UL ERTHEEER
MEBaEZRE-- AR HEBUH
MBS AR MU BEE &
R EWRIE R A R E M S E
EZBEGERIFEIRIER] -
RNEBH B RELERNEIR S
AEEARPBRERITESR
TAZEHBRABEATE -
BEMBHREENFIRE AL
B BEEDEREZEEH
SR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continueq)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at
initial recognition, measure a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVTPL, transaction costs. A financial asset is
classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised cost
(“amortised costs”); (i) financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI");
or (iii) FVTPL. The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is generally based on two
criteria: (i) the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and (i) its contractual
cash flow characteristics (the “solely payments
of principal and interest” criterion, also known
as “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be separated
from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole for the
classification.

RRAEBMBHREER ([FEY

HEA]) (&)
(a) BRI FEETEEHBHE
A -R=FE-NF—H—AEH

ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA

() ZBTRZABER:E (&)

RIBEE B R 15 & 2R F5 -
BETERKREZER (BEKES
ERTERREEENHREE
A1 2 EABE B D) I
ERNV P HEAR AR A FEN
RBRA (i BA IR A FEE
ANBRZHMBEE)FEMBKE
E-MHEEDER: ()REHK
A([HEEXRADFTEZHHE
B ()R AFEFARMEZER
AR FEFAEMEEK
A ZHBEE  R(iE R FE
FFABSZ - REBEBEEMBREE
AIFO% MBEEZ D E—RE
R EZER - ()82 /M5 & EM
TKEZEBREALMEGNRE
REFB(ER/AE RAEN
W ER TR TERAS R
MIRE]) - RBEEEVHR
HERIEISR  MARITETAS
RETEBUWBEEDFIIT W
2 RAAETBMTAAER

g
B
E3
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAERBYKREED ([HEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) FEIMERR| ) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) BRAHE - AEIETEEBHBRE
January 2018 (Continued) EA-R=-F—-NEF—HF—H%£X
(#)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continuea) ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA
(#)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () EHIRZZ7HERE (&)

instruments (Continueq)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if BB EEREBRS LATESL
both of the following conditions are met and it has BUEETEAFESAER
not been designated as at FVTPL: BB EERE A ARGT &
e |t is held within a business model whose o ZUKEEAR—ESHE®EB
objective is to hold financial assets in order to HBEMBEERNALRS
collect contractual cash flows; and MEZEBEAMERE &
e  The contractual terms of the financial asset o BB EBAEZAENEINE
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that TEHHEELERESRE  Mix
meet the SPPI criterion. ReReFEEARESEF

B RIRE-

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it HMEKKRERBFTE AT EHE

meets both of the following conditions and it has BIr3EEEZE AT E AlEmE

not been designated as at FVTPL: BIRZERRER AT ETAEM
ZEWA:

e |t is held within a business model whose o ZEBKER—(AEEREE
objective is to achieved by both collecting WEAEXHIRERENMIHEN
contractual cash flows and selling financial BEECESEES
assets; and &

e The contractual terms of the financial asset o  ZHUBEEZANIGHKINE
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that TEHHEELERERE Mz
meet the SPPI criterion. ReEREFEERELS KT

B RIRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continueq)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. All other financial assets
not classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as
described above are classified as FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On
initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

RRAEBMBHREER ([FEY
BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) BRAFAT - EIETE BB HE
BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX
(#%&)

ERMBRERENFON -SMTA
(#&)

() EHTAZAERIE (&)

RUNRERILFEBIEEER R Z
P AN % B - 6% [ A] R R] ]
EEREMEEEAR 25K
BRVPEZREREY ZEET
BIREZ AN - A Ef bt
WD ERBEHRATERIRA
FEAAEMGEZEBRAZSE
BE YOBREAVERAR
SN BHEMETERBEE-
A FIR FE R B - 7N 5= 8 R] S A] A
i EEHHEE (REMIE
A BB HKATEIIZ R FE
AAEMEERAZRE) /R
RNFEFABm AIRESBBIE
JE FLHRR SO R R D & 5T R Ao 3%
Ko
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(M)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continueq)

The following accounting policies would be
applied to the Group’s financial assets:

FVTPL FVTPL is subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Amortised Financial assets at amortised cost
costs are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

2. RABRAMBHREEN (1EEY
BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) ERANFFET - AENSETE B BHRE
R -R=—F-NF-A—-—HEX
(%)

ERMBREENFOF -SMTA
(%)

() ZBTRZABER:E (&)

AT & BRESERRNAEEZ
MBEE:

moFE BATEFAERHE
FrABR BERATVEHNE-
REFEEH BRI
LA BWAHRE

mﬁEJJ °

B8R AR REHK ARG E 2 B
BEEHEBKRAE
B REE 2 F
B - E U=
R BB A ORI E R
BEER R ILE
Rz AR B
T TR ©

99



100

China Fortune Holdings Limited

in
FERREZERERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continueq)

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for
each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1

January 2018:

Financial assets

MBRE

Trade and other receivables
FEUZ 5 BR3P MR R
Amount due from an associate

e — B AR Z

Amount due from a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary
JEl — I B A Rl — %

FEPEHINERR SR 2 FRIR
Available-for-sales investments

(“Unlisted investments”)

UHEERE ([FLTRE])

Held-for trading investments
(“Listed equity investments”)

REEERE ([LmERE])

Original classification
under HKAS 39

REFREHER
FFEREIE

Loans and receivables
BERREWRER
Loans and receivables
BERRERER
Loans and receivables

B MR

Available-for-sales
investments
(note a)

AHREERE (fiEa)

Held-for trading
investments

REEERE

2. RABRAMBHREEN (1EEY

BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) BRAFAT - EIETE BB HE

BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

(%)

ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA

(%)

SRR

Carrying amount

as at
New classification under 1 January 2018
HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39
REEBET
B %39%
RZB-N\f
REBEUBERSE -A-H
BAEIR PR ZIREE
HK$'000
FEL
Amortised cost 12,641
Amortised cost 2,382
Amortised cost 3,616
Financial assets at 2,449
fair value through
profit or loss
BAVEFAERZ
MBEE
Financial assets at 1,251

fair value through

profit or loss
BATEFAERZ

MBEE

() ZBTRZABER:E (&)

TREAANEER -F—N\F—
A—HEEMBEERETES
FHERIEIR R A EHAI MR
BEBMBREERNFOW 2

Carrying amount
as at

1 January 2018
under HKFRS 9
REFBYE
&R EON
RZB-NF
—-R—H
ZEREE
HK$'000

TER

12,641

2,382

3,616

3,897

1,251
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continueq)

Note (a):

The balance included unlisted investments of
HK$2,449,000 as at 1 January 2018. At the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9, the unlisted investments
were reclassified from available-for-sale investments at
fair value to financial assets at FVTPL. The investments
are not held for trading, but the Group has nevertheless
not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses
through other comprehensive income. The net fair value
gain of HK$1,369,000 and the exchange difference of
HK$79,000 relating to the investments were reclassified
to accumulated losses and translation reserve on 1
January 2018 respectively.

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
remain the same for the Group, the carrying amounts for
all liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not been impacted
by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the HKAS
39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) model”. HKFRS 9 requires the
Group to recognised ECL for trade receivables
and financial assets at amortised costs earlier
than HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are
subject to ECL model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

2.

RRAEBMBHREER ([FEY
BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) BH#H
E A

(%)

58
(%)

(0

(ii)

] KNS BB B R E
-R-ZE-NF-A—HEH

MBHREERESR -SRI A

EHTAZTER]E (&)

Mt (a)

ZESRBER-_ZT-N\F—HA—BZ
JE E % E2,449,00008 7T - R B X
RNE BV HHREENESRE B
FELMRERZRAFEFEZAIEE
ERBWEFHEARAFEFAR
mZMIEEE ZEREVIIERIEE
B EAEBMEETIREMEE
AERAFEREREE - BHEZE
& & 2~ FEEFFE1,369,0000%8
ToMIE R Z2£79,0008TLE D RIN =
T-NF-—A—BHEFIBEER:FIE
BRBEFE-

REBEREVBREZAED BRI

N FAABER - N\F—A—
BZEEELESERRANEBNE
BELRNFSRTE -

MEEERE

KRB BV BRELERNFORE LA
FEZRERN  BEESTERE
R EELEBBREX]BMRR A
HEERR ((RHUGFEBRBR]E
N FEUBIMEERNEIRREAR
SEFREBEHEREIR R
BHRA R RBERAGFEZHTE
EEREHAEEER - ReRREE
EBYMAIAMEEBEEAMRR - H
REH AR EL TNEK-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RABEAMBHREERN([BTEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) RHMERER|) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) IRAWFET AT E BB HRE
January 2018 (Continued) EA-R=-F—-NEF—HF—H%£X
(#&)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continueq) ERVBBERAFIR -SRI A
(#)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) BBEEERE (&)

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are
measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

REBEEBY B RS ERFHR
ER AR AT i rh — TR A5t
E:()12EA2EMERER:
HRNHE BER12M AL
ZAREENEMHERZAMESR
BE LQEHBRHEERE:
HEHRRem T AEFFHAMA
AREZENEMHREEZBBIE

BRIEEERZTE

BHEERRLERREANE
MzeatReRnERBAEERH
WEZFIBRERELZEZER
AE-RERHARREERER
PRFI AT 2 2R -

AEEDEREEVBREER
FORBEEBREE SRR
BERBEHLETIE YCORER
B EEERFEEREERD
B-AKECRIUBREARES
EEEBRERIE ZBER
b 3 R B AR5 AME R Z ATHE 1E
AEREERZAE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RABEAMBHREERN([BTEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) RHMERER|) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) ERANFFET - AENSETE B BHRE
January 2018 (Continued) EA-R=-F—-NEF—HF—H%£X
(#&)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continuea) ERVBBERAFIR -SRI A
(#)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) BBEEERE (&)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. The 12-months
ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 90 days past due.

EHIEEEBRZAE (&)

MEMEBZVBEEMS @ 78 H
EEEEM2EAZEREES

BRtE - 12 A 2 TEHREEEE
AREHEHEEREZ — 5
HIR Bl g8 mE A A& 21218
ARNZEEZEMITAEENEN-
A BBREUREERBREZE
N BESUEHEREER
EBEAEE -ZETVBEEZ
FERREREVIHEARRERXN
BIg N WA AT EEEE
B AEBEZEIEEREAN
LB Z A N BB A S 2
/—\ﬁ&—fﬁﬁﬂ"lﬁt@ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
EEBAKR R AEENE
ﬁﬁ&g&&liz,ﬁﬂ&nﬁ'
W B FERTHE B K -

A& B R - fii 8 B 8 38901 -
MBEEZEERRE KNEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HEASEMBREERN ([FEEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MEER ) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) ERANFFET - AENSETE B BHRE

January 2018 (Continued) EA-R=-F—-NEF—HF—H%£X
(#&)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) EBUBREENFER -—SMIA

(%)
(i) RBEEERME (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 365 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Management has concluded that neither the new
requirements related to the classification and
measurement nor the requirements related to
impairment have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

EHIEEEBRZAE (&)

REERBUMBEERTIIER
TREXN: MWERATAEER
EEEERE (flan: FHRER)
(FE) TRAREEBEEZNH
BEEER  RQZVBEESH
FBiB365H °

REFRMEEBERAEEZ
EREEAAEEHREERR
ZEREAHHHE-

BHIEEERZ Z5

RESHER AT B BEEZE
BRABREEZREAETN

EEEET ARAOBNMGEZ
HRELRBBABEIRE T7T"
AFEMBRRYEEMNTZE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of the ECLs model

a)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECLs which adopts a

life time ECLs for all trade receivables and

contract assets. To measure the ECLs, trade

receivables have been grouped based on

shared credit risk characteristics and invoice

day aging. On that basis, the loss allowance

as at 1 January 2018 was determined as

follows:

Not past due
Less than 1 month

past due
1 to 3 months past due
3 to 6 months past due
6 to 12 months past due
Over 12 months past due

Ria
BEADRAE A

EEI1 =31E A
B =6ME A
mHe=121E B
B ERER A1 21E A

2.

RRAEBMBHREER ([FEY

s ER

|1) (#&)

(a) BRAFAT - EIETE BB HE
BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

(%)

ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA

(%)

(i) RBEEERME (&)

BHEEBRRA.ZHE

a)

Expected
loss rate
EHEER
(%)

0.151%

0.154%
0.208%
0.649%
27.423%
100.00%

FEWE 5 B 2 BB

AEBERBEEMIERESE
RSB ML 7 At EFa 8
FERE ABmERKE
SERARENEERKZH
BEHREEER BRESK
RERBEHEREERR 2%
BURBEZAMKREDE
FtERMEEEE it
HET R-T—N\F—AH

—HrBEBBETOT:
Gross

carrying Loss

amount allowance

BEREMEE EEBE

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FAT FAT

3 _

9 _

1 _

14,135 14,135

14,135
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of the ECLs model (Continued)

a)

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

Under HKAS 39, the Group has made
a provision for impairment loss of trade
receivables amounting to HK$14,135,000
as at 31 December 2017. After applying the
expected credit loss rate to gross amount
of trade receivables, the management
considered that the HKFRS 9 has no
significant financial effect on the provision
of impairment loss of financial assets
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of amounts due from a non-
controlling shareholder and an associate

The balances are considered to be low risk
as the borrowers are considered to be low
risk of default and to have a strong capacity
to meet its obligations, and therefore the
impairment provision is determined based
on 12 months expected credit losses. After
applying the expected credit loss model, the
management considered that no additional
impairment provision as at 1 January
2018 is recognised as the additional loss
allowance for these financial instruments was
immaterial.

2. RABRAMBHREEN (1EEY
BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) IRAAFET - AEIEETE B BHE
BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

(%)

ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA
(%)

(i) RBEEERME (&)
BHEEBEREA 2 RE (#)
a) RWB SRR ZHEE (&)

BEBB G LA FE399% -
AEFEER _T—tF+=
A=+—HARERE SRR
YE 14,135,000/ T 2 8 (&
BIEREEH NEEWRE ZER
HEREERAEREEEERE
% ERERR BAUK
HE LR FEOFRE A M
BERTPERZMBEERE
EREBEYESEAVKE
2 o

b) &Y Il AR e — ] B
LRBIFIAZRE

HRERARESEEEE
HWREBRYEBRDEITEE
EZ8E MZEEHRITR
AEERE - F iR EEE
Ty 28 A FEHME E B R
B - RNERBEHEEBRE
BEAR EEERS AR
ZETMT A ZBEINGER
BETER - HR_FE—-N
F—A— BAEREREINK
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of the ECLs model (Continued)

c)

Impairment of other receivables

The balances are considered to be low risk
as the borrowers are considered to have
a strong capacity to meet their obligation,
and therefore the impairment provision is
determined based on 12 months expected
credit losses. After applying the expected
credit loss model, the management
considered that no additional impairment
provision as at 1 January 2018 is recognised
as the additional loss allowance for these
financial instruments was immaterial.

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply hedge

accounting in its hedging relationships.

2. RABRAMBHREEN (1EEY

s ER

|1) (#&)

(a) BRAFAT - EIETE BB HE
BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

(%)

ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA

(%)

(i) RBEEERME (&)

BHEEBREAZHE (&)

0)

H Al U R 2 RUE

RER/BBRER B ERRR
RARERARRSEE
AOBITEEEZEEN
It - BB B s 5 R 1 218 A
BREEBEMETE N E
REREEBERELE &
BERS R_FT—N\F—
A— B A\ RRINR A
w REARZEERMIAZ
BINBRBBLTIEKN

Hb & it E

BAEMBHREENFORETZ
HrerREBEHAKSELEY
B HHHERAKETEEHEY
HERT RSP EETREE

s
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. AEEBMBEHREER ([FEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MIEXER ) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) BRAHET - HENET B BB BH#HE&
January 2018 (Continued) R -R-FE-—NEF—F—HEHK
(#)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) EEAEREELNFIE-SmIT A
(%)
(iii) Transition (iii) BEZH
The Group has applied the transitional provision NEBE D FERS BB ERE AL

in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules are
therefore not reflected in the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, but are
recognised in the statement of financial position
on 1 January 2018. This mean that differences
in the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 are recognised in accumulated losses
and reserves as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for 2017 does not
reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather
those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9
(the “DIA™):

° The determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held;

e The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL; and

e The designation of certain investments in
equity investments not held for trading as at
FVOCI.

B Z BB MG - AEEEET
B ERESRE2EERMM
BASHLRER AL #TE
HEEEEBEERNEEZENS
MHEABRTEANA-_T—+E+_H
=+ —HB2zWBARREP R

MWRZE—NF—A—B2Z2H5
RRBRRER - HIER =T —N
F-A—BRABBTHREE
AFORELEZHBEERT B
BEZEEEEZEENRFERR
FEEPER-BAL —FT—LF
B ZERT T RME BT R
HHRBNESR 2T  ERBEE
S ERFE305 2 HE ©

MRS IR IR BB 1
AIZEoSR YR ER B B (T¥X e
BRI FEzEEREBERAME
H e

s EENBUBEEZXBE
7

5

s BERTHBEELRMBEA
B EFABRDRFER
B RRBEE R A FERA
Bat B ETHHEER
MBRE: &

s HEVYFFHEFEZTZRA
REZETHRERERTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RABEAMBHREERN([BTEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) FEIMERR| ) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) IRAWFET AT E BB HRE

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii) Transition (Continued)

If an investment in a debt had low credit risk
at the DIA, then the Group has assumed that
the credit risk on the asset had not increased
significantly since its initial recognition.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-
steps model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical expedients.
The Group has recognised the cumulative effect of
initially applying HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of accumulated losses at the date of
initial application (that is, 1 January 2018). As a result,
the financial information presented for 2017 has not
been restated.

BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

(%)

ERMBHREENESR-—EMITA
(%)

(i) BEZH (&)

HRER 2 R EEVIRER B B
AREREZEERE AAKHE
ERRZEEZEERREED
IR W R 4 R IR AN

ERVBHRELENEISHK -RKBAEF
B W

FREVBHREENE1GRMAELS
AAERFRERSN BAESTE
A8t Weas K ARRE 2 B - BB TS
HELEREIGHE R A ELRE
LR EPENMEEREARK-
RIBFFBYHRELERF155 Wk
T RREEBREEE M LR T
EFMR/REZSHEER

AREDEA R HEE (LEA
B ) RINE BB 4 B
169 - 7 % B 3 91 1% 8 PR L B9 (20
—E-NE-A—B)BNRERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RABEAMBHREERN([BTEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) FEIMERR| ) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) BRAHE - AEIETEEBHBRE

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised goods
or services in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised goods or
services is regarded as being transferred over time:

— when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs;

- when the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced; or

— when the entity’'s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS
15, the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that
goods or services at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control
occurs.

Otherwise, the revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation if
control of the goods or services transfers over time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Based on the current assessment of the Group, the

adoption of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on

the timing and amounts of revenue recognised for

contracts with customers. Details of the new significant

accounting policies and the nature of the changes to

previous accounting policies in relation to the Group’s

mobile phone business are set out below:

Product/service

B/ RH%

Trading of mobile phones

Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of

performance obligations and payment terms

ERIMBLE BTRNEEARARER

Revenue from trading of mobile phones is recognised
at the point in time when control of the products is
transferred to the customer, generally when the products
are delivered to and the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to customer. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 60 days.

REVHEZEG 2 WERERENREBERF 2R
BHD —RAEERXNTEPURBRERBRERE
BTEFPR - —REE-HBHEL-RE-RNC0BR
SANE

RRAEBMBHREER ([FEY
BHREEQ]) (£)

(a) BRAFAT - EIETE BB HE

BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX

(%)

ERUBH/ELEAFIK-KREEF
BN (&

RIBFAKEB RIS RABBR
BHRESERFEIGRIEHREERPA
Ml s ERRERSBEREAT
E-EHAKERHEREHT 2
ZEABEIEENETRREZE

HEERIT

Nature of change in accounting policy
and impact on 1 January 2018
RZB-N\§-A-H2

ENBREPHUERYE
Impact
7]

Under HKAS 18, revenue from trading of mobile phones
is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods have been transferred to
the buyer. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the products are delivered to and the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
customer.

REFAGHENZ18 REBDEAEH 2 WaEn
ERBERZERAEROREERZERRA R
BEBMBREENE 1SS UERERIFTFEFN
LRBERBERBRER TEFERR -

Therefore, HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact
on the Group’s accounting policies on revenue of
trading mobile phones.

At BHEHBREEUSISRUBHAEEEERE
BREI MG EHARREREAT R
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HEASEMBREERN ([FEEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MEER ) (&)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) BRAHE - AEIETEEBHBRE

January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications
to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group had
not previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this, its first year.

Revenue for trading of mobile phones generally
includes only one performance obligation. The Group
has concluded that revenue from trading of mobile
phones should be recognised at the point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the customer,
generally when the products are delivered to and the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to customer.

BRI -R-FE-NF-—HA—HLHX
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) -Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to

Leases'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Long-term Interests in
Associates and
Joint Ventures'
Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations!

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Joint Arrangements’

Amendments to HKAS 12,
Income Taxes'

Amendments to HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs'

Definition of a Business?

Definition of Material?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
The effective date has now been deferred/removed.
Early application of the amendments continues to be
permitted.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretation, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of

leases differently.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease of HK$723,000 as disclosed in
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability
in respect of all the leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirement may result changes in measurement,

presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for

income taxes.

2.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments (Continued)

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The
entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, then the entity should measure current
and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty
in the determination of tax is reflected using either
the “most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 - Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-
term interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures
which form part of the net investment in the associates
or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied
to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance
within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarify
that when a joint operator of a business obtains
control over a joint operation, this is a business
combination achieved in stages and the previously held
equity interest should therefore be remeasured to its

acquisition-date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify
that when a party that participates in, but does not
have joint control of, a joint operation which is a
business and subsequently obtains joint control of
the joint operation, the previously held equity interest
should not be remeasured to its acquisition-date fair
value.

2.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HEASEMBREERN ([FEEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) MEER ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EBHAEEREMZF T AENETE

not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify
that all income tax consequences of dividends are
recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain
a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or
sale would become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general pool.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs.

Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business.

2.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 - Definition of
Material

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above standards and
amendments to existing standards to the Group.
Except as HKFRS 16 described above, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of other
new and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation
will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions and/or the disclosures to
the financial statements of the Group.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”)
and the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, these financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange.

(b) Basic of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except that certain financial
instruments are measured at fair values.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or

loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiaries either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

4.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018) (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception./Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue for trading of mobile phones generally includes
only one performance obligation. The Group has concluded
that revenue from trading of mobile phones should be
recognised at the point in time when control of the products
is transferred to the customer, generally when the products
are delivered to and the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to customer. In the comparative
period, revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which was
taken as at the time of delivery and the title is passed to
customer.

Commission income is recognised point in time when the
goods are delivered to customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price
and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

5%-20% or over the term
of the relevant leases,

Leasehold

improvements
whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

An item of plant and equipment is written down immediately

to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher

than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible asset
Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Intangible asset (Continueq)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Leasing (Continueqd)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
require a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as port of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Taxation (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they related to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

Financial instruments

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 January 2018)

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A
trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group has not elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income. All
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
ECLs on trade receivables and financial assets
The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12

measured at amortised cost.

months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 90 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESHHE (&)

Financial instruments (Continued) 2HETA(E)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

A eMIAE(B=ZZ—NF—F—H#e
ERZEEE) (&)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

(i) HBEEEZHEERE(E)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial

asset is more than 365 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
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gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the HEREERE)FTE -IEEE
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial BEZMBEEEmMS '%IJ,%\J%Z)\
assets interest income is calculated based on the TR BREERE
gross carrying amount.

(iii) Financial liabilities (i) BHEE
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, AREBRTHBABEEZERN

depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings, certain
preference shares and the debt element of
convertible loan note issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, TEEHGE (£)

Financial instruments (Continued) 2HETA(E)

(A) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied A ERIBE(B=ZZE—-NE—HA—H#e

from 1 January 2018) (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 December 2017)

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 December 2017) (Continueq)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets represent held for trading financial
assets. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in

the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in

the period which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate other
types of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivatives that are designated
as available-for-sale or not included in other categories
of financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESHHE (&)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR THEH(E)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied B) ¢tWMIBE(ERE=-ZE—+tH5+=AH

until 31 December 2017) (Continueq)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of other reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor; or

o a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 December 2017) (Continueq)

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance

account for the relevant financial asset.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is

recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is

not reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 December 2017) (Continueq)
Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised cost are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (i) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 December 2017) (Continueq)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, amounts due to related parties
and other borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or

loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Fair value measurement

The Company uses Binomial Option Pricing Model to
measure the fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market. Difference may arise
between the fair value at initial recognition (which, in
accordance with HKFRS 13 and HKAS 39, is normally
the transaction price) and the amount determined at
initial recognition using the valuation technique. Any
such differences is deferred and not recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts deferred are recognised in
profit or loss when pricing of equivalent products or
the underlying parameters become observable. When
the transaction is closed out, the amounts deferred are

released.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, TEEHGE (£)

Financial instruments (Continued) 2HETA(E)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied B) ¢tWMIBE(ERE=-ZE—+tH5+=AH

until 31 December 2017) (Continueq)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at
the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Financial instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 December 2017) (Continueq)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated

losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the services received are
measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the services
received are recognised as expenses immediately,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve) when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or

services qualify for recognition as assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Mining right

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of
production method based on the proven and probable
mineral reserves.

The latest 2-year mining operating permit, which Sifa Mining
was allowed to carry out exploration activities only, but not
exploitation activities, had been expired on 25 September
2016. Since then, the Group had been preparing for the
application of renewal for a mining operating permit.

Because of the DLR Announcement issued on 21
December 2017 and the legal advise obtained in 2018 as
stated in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are of the opinion that there is a material
uncertainty on whether the Group will be successful in the
application of renewal for the mining operating permit. As
a consequent, the directors assumed the Group is unable
to obtain the mining operating permit in the impairment
assessment of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit of the mining business (the “CGU").
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgment,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes other borrowings and amount due to a
related party as disclosed in Notes 27 and 37(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and various reserves.

EEATRERZZTERR (£)

FE W B 5 RR 5k R A b JE W AR 5 2 B 1

RIBE BT & 2RI SE 95 & A A KR 510
MBEEETRERE EAEDL X
FRlREEEREERLTEEERRD
RIEIEINE - HARRBERERERERE
MR R BEENEROMGG  HFEFR
ZHRAZRES ETPEHENED I RENR
AEH T RRE R -

REREEH AKESHBEHA®RS
REZ9SERA ARz ENEFFHRE
ERERNRBRAETT LR UGB 25
RUAREERRRETAREEM A&H
Mt eEEARLEAN D BERANSE
WA RNERERAKERENER &
P EEERELERARATEED T -

EXERER

AEEZEAERBRDREREEER
BEE LM AKRRIEHRER RN RER
M EBRE ZME TRFREZER
RIELURIEE AR -

AEEEARBREER (RESEMT
WA 27 R37 (D) EE 2 Kb 5 & N &
M—REEALZREB) REARBEAA
fElhED (BREERTRARSRRE)



Annual Report 2018
T N\F#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

Debt
Less: Cash and bank balances

BE
IR RIRITETF

Net cash HeFRE
Equity iy
Net debt to equity ratio FEEYHESE R

6.
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AEBERBERRCEERBLERNT:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
11,866 14,878
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables at REHEAAFTEZER
amortised costs (including cash N U R (B1E
and cash equivalents) RekReEED)
Financial assets at fair value BATE AER
through profit or loss ZUHBEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
— at cost — PR
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE
— at fair value — B RAFEE
Financial liabilities MBEE
Financial liabilities measured LR AT E 2B EaE

at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market price; and

— the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial
instruments that are measured at fair value by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data.

ETRMIA

(a) T@ETEEF

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAET
55,564 25,544
5,886 -

- 2,449

- 1,251

65,533 43,297
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continueqd)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value

7. E@MIA(#Z

(a) @I EEF (&)

TREH#RZAFEIGZERT AR

RNFEBRE D 2O

hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R FE2MR ERP Fo
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Assets BE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF
+-A=+—8
Financial assets at fair value ¥ AFEFAERHZ
through profit or loss BB AE
- Unlisted equity —JEmREERE
investments - - 1,619 1,619
— Unlisted fund investment —FLTESKE - - 3,731 3,731
- Listed equity investments ~ — F T RIERE 536 - - 536
536 - 5,350 5,886
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=ZA=+—8
Available-for-sale investments A] it H &% &
- Unlisted equity —SELTMRERE
investments - - 69 69
- Unlisted fund investment ~ — 3 EMELEE - - 2,380 2,380
Held-for-trading investments  #{FE &R &
— Listed equity investments ~ — T IERE 1,251 - - 1,251
1,251 - 2,449 3,700

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 or into
or out of Level 3 during the year.

FR-FINR2HBEER  TE

BAREHER -



156

China Fortune Holdings Limited

in
HREREZERER LR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of unlisted
equity investments and certain unlisted fund
investment have been determined by Fuson Appraisal
Limited, the independent qualified valuer, which are
categorised under Level 3 fair value measurement. The
movement of financial instruments under Level 3 of fair
value hierarchy is as follows:

At 1 January ®n—H—H

Initial adoption of HKFRS 9 BIRIRME BV SR
EO5

Purchases BE

Fair value change NEEEY

Exchange adjustments M 5, 8

At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H

The fair value of financial assets that are grouped
under Level 3 is determined by using market approach
valuation techniques.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

° Fund administrators’ valuation for unlisted
investment fund, these investment funds invest
substantially in a basket of investments, such as
property development projects carried in Beijing.

e Market value was measured based on the
underlying value of the assets and liabilities of the
unlisted equity investments.

LRI A (&)

(a) AT RESF (&)

RZE—-NFE+-A=+—H8 3L
TRERERETHLTESKREZ
ANFEEHBYSERGEMEET
HERAREE UHEAEIRAF
B EET AFEERIFEIRET
CRMTEZHHMT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
2,449 2,289
1,448 -
1,550 -
98 -

(195) 160
5,350 2,449
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oI

o FLMKRERSZESEEAM
B ZEREESTEREN —
EFRE PIMPRIERETZY
XBRER -

s REBIFLTREREZEENA
BZHBEEFEME
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at other than fair value
approximated their fair values as at 31 December 2018
because of the short-term maturities nature.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets included financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and
other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary and cash and cash
equivalents. The Group’s major financial liabilities
included trade and other payables, amounts due to
a related party and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk,
equity price risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i)  Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group are exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily arising from foreign
currency bank deposits, other receivables and
trade and other payables.

7. € WIHE(#&)

(a)

(b)

EETAKE (&)

RREHRIRHZEE AEEXL
BAVEIGZERMTAZRAER
ER=—ZF—-N\F+-_A=+t—HzZR
FEMESE -

BIBEREEEREKE

AEEZIZMBEERRKRRATE
AABRmMHEE BWESERK
Ko B At W BR K~ B LR — T Y U8 2 )
— B UERRZ RIBANKRIRE R
ReEEY - AREZTEMBAE
BIEEN B 5B FN H A R RR A
RER — BB E AL MM BRI
PIERRZFB -ZEERTAZH
BREVEHERE-FRZSTER®
TAZRERBED SRR (SMNER R
EMERR) - EERRE  REERR
BRRBE SRR T XEIRELL
FRBsER - ERESEENER
% BB - PARE LR Ko I 30 B R BREX

B

IS EE

() S EE R
NEE SR E A 7w LN R,
B TERANERITER H

il & 45 BR R A B BN B 5 BR A
H Al A BRI o
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Assets

aE

2018
HK$’000
FTER

HK$ BT 2,235

eRTA(£)

(b) BHEEBEZEFERKE (&)

SRR (&)

(i)

2017
HK$'000
TET

20

S ()

RERPEER  AEBEAEH
KEBERBNEEE U 2 EHF

BErBEAEBEERGGBZER
BT
Liabilities
=L
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
5,062 2,450

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group'’s
sensitivity to a 4% (2017: 4%) appreciation in the
functional currency of the relevant subsidiaries
(RMB) against the above foreign currency. 4%
(2017: 4%) represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for a 4% (2017: 4%)
change in the exchange rates. A strengthening of
the functional currency of the relevant subsidiaries
against the above foreign currency would give rise
to the following impact to the Group’s profit/loss
for the year, or vice versa.

REEFE@E BT 2ERKD
Rk TREAAEE BB E
NREAMEEEE (ARKE) N Lt
SNEFHEA% (ZT—+HF 1 4%)
CEHEE 4% (ZE—+ 5
4% ) /58 TR B 4 S EE [E K 7] g
HIREBEH 25T - GURED
TERFERREEZINETESR
WIER YN E2RPEFERIUE
4% (ZF—LF:14%) 28
%ﬂﬁiﬁgﬂﬁﬁf’ﬁwg“ﬂlﬂ%

B DRINETHE SEAE
ExFEmH BEELENTE
& RZIARe
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

FERFRLD

Decrease in profit/

(increase in loss) (E1EIE i)
for the year
- HK$ BT

In the management’s opinion, the above
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily
representative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposure at year end does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate borrowings
(see Note 27 and 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements for details) as they are carried
at amortised costs. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk as the interest rates of borrowings are
fixed (see Note 27 and 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements for details).

7. $®MIA(£)

(b) HHEBEEZEABEREE (&)

miE R ()
() &R (E)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT T
292 (97)

(ii)

EEERR BRFEMEHZ
2B 3 A 2 BR A 4 BT I 4 2 R
B M EABRES ML —E
RREBINE R -

T m Bz

HRESEE (FBAGEAaMK
R M EE27 ]2 37(b) ) LA S5 5K AR
SIE MAREBAREERRE
EAEATFENRER KAEH
IR B N R E R B - R
EEEeEAEMNERR YEE
BERERZRHHPERNN KA

@5 o
AA

HRMEEZ MR BEEME (F
BREAMBRERM F27R
37(b)) XA KE YL |ALMIR
mE N KRR
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, amounts due from
an associate and a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, and bank balances. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of trade customers. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2017: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with four (2017: five) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit

quality.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

7. @WMIE(£&)

(b) HMHBEBEZEEEREE (&)

FERR

AEBZEERBRIEREEEWE
29 8 3R e B At B B K - B M — T
ERAN—HNE AR —BIEEGIE
BERZFIBERRITESH - EEER

FERE IRHBERANEEMAE
ZHEEERR -

LI U E 5 AR A K H 8 UK BR B
OB EERBE—E2BEIEP
BREEXZEREEN G - AR ES
RRE P XN B HIR IR 2 4 MR
MRz N UAREBEEFZARE
BREPEEMEN ZEBERE N
SEERESEF ZMBRRETH
BEEMGE - AEERETGERER
W B o

AN - A AEEI9% (—ZF— 45 -
99% ) RITIHFREFHN A (—ZF—+
FREMRT WAKEHREETR
BEEERR - AN ARRZHF
RRUEGEEEEZRIT WRDER
ZEERRBAR-

AEERERANEEABEMH 2 ERE
EEBZeRAERKESRRZ
EREEE L ERBREREEETT
BE-HRAEBEBEEEBBEL AR
TRAEFPDHBREATRAEBER
CERBHREZBERETISHE
—ERAKENREFER 2 HE—
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. E®ITEH(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HHERBEEEEREE (/&)
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018:

Not past due K 48 AP

Less than 1 month past due B E D 1 1E A
1 to 3 months past due B ER1 =318 A

4 to 8 months past due BHEI4E61E A

7 to 12 months past due BEI7E12M@ A
Over 12 months past due BERHER12(E8 A

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables. No impairment
for trade receivables is provided as the amount of
additional impairment measured under the ECLs model
is immaterial.

FERR (&

TEREHEBFANR_-_ZT—-N\F+_H
=t HAREAR ZEERRME
WEZERZEREEBERER:

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

A

Bia=x BEREE BEERE
(%) HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0.151% - -
0.154% - -
0.208% 456 1
0.649% - =
45.605% 1 -
100.00% 51 51
508 52

BEHEEBERXTNREREBEBRLRT
B -ZFEMNEXERBARRFENE R
AP R B E BUR - B ATAOR &
AEBIZEYG AR FHR R 2L
BERRAZZR -HNRAREEEE
BEAFEZEINBESZRLTEXR
A A P UK 5 AR AR VE R (B
e
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment. At 31 December 2017, trade receivables
of HK$14,135,000 was determined to be impaired.
The aging analysis of trade receivables that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:

Not past due oK HA
Less than 1 month past due
1 to 3 months past due

4 to 6 months past due

7 to 12 months past due
Over 12 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the group. Based on past
experience, management believed that no impairment
allowance was necessary in respect of these balances
as there had been no significant change in credit
quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

wH D 1 {E A
BEI1E3(E A
BEAZ6(R A
BEITE12ME A
BEEB1218 A

7. $®MIA(£)

(b) HHEBEEZEABEREE (&)

FERR (&)

RZZE—NF—A—HAi BEKE
EREBEREZERFTERER N
T—+HE+-_A=+—HB BKEH
Ak 514,135,000/ JL % & & B B R
BE-VEERAEREZEKE ZK
RZERBRDOWIT

2017
HK$'000
TAET

- ©O© W

13

48 360 5 2508 (B 2 8 W B K B A
BHERAELZZEEFAR-

B BB RIRE 2 FE W iRk R 5 08
YEFER REEFPRAKEASR
RIFEBERE -REBELR BEE
IR B AR T AR IRBERE
FRARERERYESARES HA
RSN AR BBk E -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. E®WMIAE(£&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BBEBREEEZERBKE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

FERR (&

FRERERKE SRR BEERFR
BEHMT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T FiET
Balance at 31 December RIFEE B LRI E395%
under HKAS 39 R+ZA=+—BZ#&#H 14,135 17,998
Impact of initial application of VIR ERB BB RE%ER
HKFRS 9 FOR B = -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R — A —B&EHAE 2 &6 14,135 17,998
Amounts written off FAMBESEE
during the year - (3,885)
Impairment losses recognised FARRZBEBE
during the year 8 18
Recovery of bad debts I [ 42 BR (14,083) -
Exchange adjustments B i A (3) 4
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B2z2#&% 52 14,135

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the
decrease in the loss allowance during 2018:

A write-back of trade receivables with a gross carrying
amount of HK$14,083,000 resulted in a decrease in
loss allowance of HK$14,083,000.

ATRKEZERIERAELEXN
EHERM T - N\F2EEERER

AR T 4 %7 /314,083,000/8 7T 2 & UK
BoEFME SRBERERD
14,083,000/ 7T °
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018 included one
major counterparties accounting for approximately
90% (2017: included one major counterparties
accounting for approximately 100%) of the trade
receivables. The Group has closely monitored the
recoverability of the advances to these counterparties
and taken effective measures to ensure timely
collection of outstanding balances. The Group has not
obtained collateral from customers.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of
geographic risk on revenue which is generated mostly
from customers located in the PRC. The Group has
closely monitored the business performance of these
customers in the PRC.

The amounts due from an associate, a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary and other receivables are
measured at amortised costs and are considered to
have low credit risk because they are considered to
have a strong capacity to meet its obligations. They
are also subject to the ECLs model and the loss
allowances limited to 12 months ECLs. After applying
the expected credit loss model, the management
considered that loss allowance for these financial
instruments was immaterial.

7. $®MIA(£)

b) BERBEEERERKE (/&)

FERR (&)

RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H &
EEWEZSERZEERREFBE
—ZIHEE ZERRL0% 2 EER
SHFH(ZE—LF :BE—AG
JEWE ZERAN100% 2 EEX 5
FH) AEEDEYERMZERS
HFEAEL 2BR 2T WEIER I
FLELA U e R K B i B 1 R i [0
ZERR e AEELEE TP HSHET

[}
am °

AEBAEAERSEZMEARSES
EHRARIERBURTEZIER -
ARBERTNERZSTRAEF X
BRE -

FEUL — I & R A 2 R - R —
B /8 2 B — & SR HR Il ME BRR 2 SRR K%
H A U BRI I B AGTE - I
BEREAREEERR REASE
WESERBENEBTHEET %F
HENMAXEMEEBRELRRRY
12 AEREEBRZEEBEMR
R -RERBEREEERRILE TR
BRAZFEMITAZEBEBELT
EX-
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. E®WMIAE(£&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) BERBEEERERKE (/&)

(Continued)
Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the PRC stock exchange.
Management monitors the price risks and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to the equity price risk on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is not significant.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the recognised of borrowings as well as the cash flows
from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

I 4 B A T B

AEBERE £ BRAE 7 M AS K
EBRER BEEE4FRARS —HKRE
MENEE I ER - ARENKER
REIEEPRTERLFXFABRED
RATR - EEEEREBRRER L
REFBERZEL HEAR -

ERERRANEERIZ QA FEFAR
2 IS B B AT R B (B AR L 2 I
REX B 82 mERE D -

REBETER

EERBETRERE AEEEEY
HREEERRERAAAEEZER
HESZRERASFEY LRE
RenBRBHZYE-EREGER
BEZHERBAANEE RS 2R

< =
JILE ©

TREIAEBEITERIFITERB A
BZRBANBNEEE - ZRRIEH
BREZAURRERERAEER]
RAGRECRFEHGER BENE
RAGZBRERE -
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continueq)

Liquidity table

2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to a related party
- a director
- interest-free
- fixed rate at imputed interest
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to a related party
- a director
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Other borrowings
- fixed rate

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
(per annum)
MmEFH
ERA=
(8%F)
%
—E-N\F
FiERBEE
R EHEFREAMERER -
ER—2BEATZHE
-—4%E%
— ﬁ E =
- BEENSHEZEERNE 4.75
ERHEAR
FEHMRR 2 5E -
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
(per annum)
MmETH
ERFI%
(BF)
%
—E-tE
FTEHBEE
EREHERREER TR -
ERN—2EEATZFE
-—%E% -
ERMEAF
FEHMRE 2 5B -
HinfEE
%8 8.47

7. $®MIA(£)

(b) BBEEBREZERERKE (&)
RBESER (£
mEBEEE

More than More than Carrying

On demand 1yearbut 2 years but Total amount

or less than less than less than undiscounted as at

1 year 2 years 5years  cashflows  31.12.2018

S

—E-N\f

T=A

REXY  SRMER SME  RERREE =t-Hz

HSIME DReFE  BHRSE REAE REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TERT TET TR TR

38,878 - - 38,878 38,878

6,493 - - 6,493 6,493

- - 13,680 13,680 11,866

8,296 - - 8,296 8,296

53,667 - 13,680 67,347 65,533

More than More than Carrying

On demand 1yearbut 2 years but Total amount

or less than less than less than  undiscounted as at

1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows ~ 381.12.2017

R

i 3

+=A

RERS  HMEE SRE REBRRE  =T-Bz

o Sks PR2E BORSF nELE FEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TiER FiERT

24,583 - - 24,583 24,583

165 - - 165 165

3,671 - - 3,671 3,671

16,138 - - 16,138 14,878

44,557 - - 44,557 43,297
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 8. NIER KW

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TEHRSHBRITZEHS Wz 18

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make
strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

e  Mining business

Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

#w BERBEBZHLL

AEBERHELRBREZETEE
BARE([ETEZERRE])EMN
ZREBEHEED G

BE-T-N\F+-A=t+—ALE
R AEBRBEEMETZE B
A R RETRER U RES
B RER A0 1 5 - d
BEHWTIH HEE U THBRMA
REEETSHABLED:

s BIERED

s REE®

HREESH CEXEERCEXAR
WRAFATEEERRENEDH
RERERzyRED DHMEER
DHMEBEZFERN RARBEROE

ERAZWOHE -
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8.

—NEFETZA=tT—HILFE

THEMRWE (&)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) :7 ZHSHETEHELZH Wz 1B
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets m BEREEZYKE(EZ)
and liabilities (Continueqd)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 Bz-_2-N\E+=-HA=+—81L
FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
B
BIEEK PRIE T #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET FET
Reportable segment revenue BAVBHRELRFE155R
from contracts with external HENZKBINAEP
customers within scope of AR A 23 F M=
HKFRS 15 216,104 - 216,104
Reportable segment profit A 2 35 200 A 11,990 (3,238) 8,752
Depreciation and amortisation T & K 5 199 - 199
Reversal of impairment loss Hm—BEEEZT
recognised in respect of TE AT FRIE MR
prepayment paid to a supplier FEEEREE (363) - (363)
Impairment loss recognised in BEFEUE 5 BR 3 R H R U
respect of trade and other R ER 2 R EEE
receivables 2 = 2
Impairment loss recognised in REEBRZREEE
respect of inventories - 1,221 1,221
Recovery of bad debts I 242 AR (14,083) = (14,083)
Recovery of write down of 15 & #oR
inventories (155) - (155)
Reportable segment assets ARy HBEE 72,083 3,643 75,726
Additions to non-current assets FERBEERE 5,808 - 5,808
Reportable segment liabilities CIES 5 5= (36,069) (12,701) (48,770)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. S EER B % (&)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TE2HTHBRIZHS MWz -8
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets wm BEREBEEZYEK (EZ)

and liabilities (Continued)

2018
HK$’000
THER
Revenue W 2%
Reportable segment revenue and A 2Wmn s Rire W
consolidated revenue 216,104
Profit before income tax R F7 18 Bt A0 s R
Reportable segment profit Al 2o F i 8,752
Fair value loss on financial assets at BRATEFABRIMBEE 2
fair value through profit or loss NEEEE (519)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BLIE B F BR SR % H Ath 8 AR 5Kk
trade and other receivables R REEE (21)
Interest income FEMA 45
Miscellaneous income FEIEA 598
Write back of interest payables FE A7 B 3 = 11,922
Motor vehicle expenses B (116)
Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations) 8 Tk (R FEEEFHH) (5,641)
Rental expenses HeR% (634)
Corporate expenses TESZT (3,286)
Share of results of associates DI E AR EE (647)

Consolidated profit before income tax BrFTS B AT 4 & i 7 10,453
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8.

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

—NEFETZA=tT—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued) 8. DEHERRUWE (&)

(a) 7£§ﬁ RUAZHH MWz 18

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets w BE /E ,é EZ88R (EZ)

and liabilities (Continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Investments in associates
— Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities
— Tax payables
— Amount due to a related party
(Note 37(b))
— Others

Consolidated total liabilities

2018
HK$’000
FET
BE
A2/ BEE 75,726
KO EEE
—BEATZEE 498
—BAFEFABE IV BEE
5,886
—SMeiE 877
-RekREEEY 1,704
—E A 554
REBEERE 85,245
=L
AE®koHEaE 48,770
KOoBETEERE
— B BE 4,574
—EN—RZBEEAT 2B
(Pt EE37(b) ) 18,359
—HAb 6,106
e BaEeE 77,809
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

e BB R

=M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Reportable segment revenue
from contracts with external
customers within scope of
HKFRS 15

Reportable segment loss

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on disposal of plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of prepayments paid to
suppliers

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other
receivables

Recovery of write down of
inventories

Reportable segment assets
Reportable segment liabilities

BEMBHRELERNFE155%
BENZREINATP
BHMA 2R D 8Bk

2% AR E1E

e R EH
HERERREZER

BLRBS B R R FE R
B & 1B

FLERTR AR RS 2 BB B 1B

T A 8 7 ST AN 2 TR A BR0R

FER R EE 18

ThIE B 5 R R N E A R U

ARREER 2 RE R 18

T & MO B =

8.

THEMRWE (&)

(a) TEZHDHRAIZHEDH Wz 18

w BERBEBZHEK (&)

HE_T—tHF+_A=1t—HLF

J_-Er_
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
% &
BEES RUE BET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
7,436 - 7,436
(28,815) (186,993) (215,808)
3 310 313
37 - 37
- 8,965 8,965
- 174,589 174,589
24,903 - 24,903
1,170 457 1,627
(516) - (516)
29,902 5,181 35,083
(3,936) (39,247) (43,183)

s

y—
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 E#HZE—F

8.

—NEFETZA=tT—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Loss before income tax

Reportable segment loss

Fair value loss on held-for-trading investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments

Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Motor vehicle expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ remunerations)

Rental expenses

Corporate expenses

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Consolidated loss before income tax

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets
— Investments in associates
— Available-for-sale investments
— Held-for-trading investments
— Club memberships
— Cash and cash equivalents
— Others

Consolidated total assets

8.

THEMRWE (&)

R A 2 85

(a) TE#H7
% BERBEZHE (&)

BRATEH AR

A 2w IEE
%¢§§&§2ﬂ$ﬁ%ﬁ

Al SR E R ZRERR

M A
HIERA
B
BIKA (2
HemMx
ELH
DR E N E 2 EE
Bl & B AR

BIEREEHM)

puj

22BN MEE
ANBEEEEE
—BMEQRZKE
—AHHERE
—RBEEERE
—EmeR
—REekREFEY
—Hfh

Bt - 1R

2017
HK$'000
TAET

7,436

(215,808)
(102)

(2,614)
156
783

(227,838)

35,083

1,145
2,449
1,251
888
3,508
5562

44,876
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities (Continued)

8. oWMER KW (&)

(a) TEZHDHRAIZHEDH Wz 18

w BERBEBZHEK (&)

2017
HK$’000
FAT
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities RO aFE 43,183
Unallocated corporate liabilities ﬂiﬁj HE_U—_%E &
— Tax payables —FERHBIE 4,574
— Amount due to a related party —EN—RBBEEAT ZHIE
(Note 37(b)) (P 5E37(b) ) 165
— Others —H it 3,005
Consolidated total liabilities maBfEes 50,927
Geographical information (b) HiHER
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, REBE_E-N\EFR-ZZT—tF+=
the Group’s operations and non-current assets are A=+—BLtFE AEBEZEBK
situated in the PRC in which all of its revenue was IERBEEHMN AR f1 2w
derived. HRERE -
Information about major customer (c) EEETEEFZEH
For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenues BE_Z-N\F+A=+—8B1IL

from two (2017: two) customers in the mobile phone
business of the Group amounted to HK$80,298,000
and HK$35,667,000 (2017: HK$5,692,000 and
HK$983,000) respectively, each of which represent
37% and 17% of the Group’s revenue.

FE AEEBRHEHFEEBEME (=
E—tF WB)EPLPHKED
7%80,298,000/% 7T 535,667,000/
T (ZF—+%:5,692,000% T &
983,000 7T ) * H1h AN E B K37 %
KA7%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (Continued)

(d) Revenue

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by
primary geographical market, major products and

service lines and timing of revenue recognition.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

Primary geographical market
PRC

Major product
Mobile phone

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time

FTEMETS
a3l

TEEMm
BHER

Uy 25 72 SR B
A — A B

TERER K W (F)
() Wzt

RTRA RWRRETEMETS =
ZEmMmMRB D BN B EEREED
e

BEFEHWHEDIF

Trading of mobile phone

EEBEDER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
216,104 7,436
216,104 7,436
216,104 7,436
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Exchange (loss)/gain

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Fair value loss on held-for-trading
investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of inventories

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of prepayments paid to suppliers

Reversal of impairment
loss recognised in respect of
prepayment paid to a supplier
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables
Written off of plant and equipment
Write back of interest payables
Recovery of bad debts
Others

FINANCE COSTS

Interests on other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

9. Htlhm RE#E

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&ERT FET
X (&) s 2 3
BRAFEFABRZUBEE
2 ANFEEE (519) -
BIEEBEREZ ATEEIE
= (102)
RAHEERERRZRERER
= (2,614)
BEE RSB BERHEESRE
- (8,965)
REERRZREEE
(1,221) -
FEEER T2
TE T R IB MR
WA EE - (24,903)
FE—REERZT 2
T8 FIE TR
(B E 1B D 363 —
FEFEUE 5 B8R 30 K H h FE Uk
R ER 2 REEE (23) (1,627)
58 B T A% - (37)
JE 15 ) Bl =] 11,922 =
1 [B] 32 BR 14,083 -
EHAh (1,619) -
22,984 (38,245)
10. @& KA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&ERT FET
ARAFRNBEEEZ
HiEE 2HE - 1,208
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 1. FiEHEAX(E&)
The amount of income tax expense/(credit) in the SAEMEPERARZTRNZFAESEHBES
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income () Lz
represents:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAT
Current tax — PRC Enterprises Income ENEiF: 18 —sh Bl 1> ¥ Fr 5 %
Tax (“EIT") (T¥mBHR])
— tax for the year —FEWRIA 148 -
Deferred tax credit (Note 30) EIER AR % (MFE30) - (41,116)
148 (41,116)
The Group’s major operations are being carried out through AREBFBEND B 2 HE QR #E
its subsidiaries established in the PRC and subject to the TEEER W EESS (T —+HF:
EIT rate of 25% (2017: 25%), unless preferential rates are 25% ) 2 EEFTIS BB RAT - EEEH X
applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located. AR ZEM B R A FTE ™ RIS o
No provision for income tax has been made as the Group HERAEERBEEZE-_ZEZ—+tHF+ - A
did not have any estimated assessable profits during the =t+—HIEFEWETAEG 2 ERTG

year ended 31 December 2017.

M #I0 SR AE PTG B 48
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be
reconciled to the profit/(loss) before income tax per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax expense/(credit) at the
domestic income tax rate of 25%
(2017: 25%) (Note)

Tax effect of share of results of
associates

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ 8] 155 5 5z 2 7 75 5
BEZRBWAZHRIER

Tax effect of non-taxable income

BATERANERN, (EE)

&mm% S E25%
T—+F:25%)5tE 2
FIEBiMs (ER) (M)
SRR RRZEBE 2 MB R

E MR

—NE+ZA=+—BILER
1. AEHAX (ER) (&)

AFEEZREHAR (R BEa2@E
WARZBRSHATRT (ER) kM
T

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K IERIRIBE 1B K8 A TEE 1B

and utilisation of tax losses and
deductible temporary differences
Effect of tax concession granted
to subsidiary
Effect of different tax rates of
group entities operating in TRME &
other jurisdictions

Income tax expense/(credit)

BETHBARNBEREZZE

REMANEEREEZS

PrisHiR<, (E%)

RAMBEE 2B HEYE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FET
10,453 (227,838)
2,613 (56,960)
107 1
1,053 9,695
(5,415) (972)
2,482 6,205
488
(155) -
BT
(537) 915

148 (41,116)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

11.

INOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$182,731,000 (2017:
HK$166,364,000) available for offsetting against future
profits. The tax losses are subject to the final assessment
by the tax authorities in the respective jurisdictions where
the tax losses arising from. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$43,043,000 (2017: HK$32,071,000) that may be
carried forward for a period of five years from their
respective year of origination. The remaining unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$8,854,000 (2017: HK$8,808,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

M. 8% (ER) (&)

REREAR  AEE AT AEEIREK
A 2 M AR B ATRIEEE A /182,731,000
BT (ZZ —+ 4 :166,364,000%8 7T ) °
MIBEIBASEEMBEEENEERER
[ B 575 M B VE AR 1R AT Y o R AN DA TR
R R PROR - A B B AT IS AT 2 1A R B
AzRMEBBREREEHIBEE AKX
TR TR I8 &5 18 2 B 18 49 /543,043,000 7T
—ZT—t4:32,071,00087T) 7] B &
EXFERAERAF -FTHABEREE
JE5 18 Rl A] fE PR B A5 85 o

RERPAR AEBTEANBEREZE
498,854,000 7T ( —Z —t4 : 8,808,000
HBIT) c AR AP BEEE IR R ZETE
FAUAEE S5 FE AR B i M) - ol I M pE % 3 T
HEREERREERIEEE-

fisE: AMABHMEIERNEERNTE D EBE
Rz EEMEHRBE-
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12. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 12. BT EB AR (BE)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax is BT EF, (EE)
arriving at
after charging: 2k -
Auditor’s remuneration % B B & 1,134 970
Cost of inventories recognised as ERRARAI 2 FERAR
expenses 213,966 7,147
Depreciation of plant and equipment BE M REZITE 211 331
Staff costs B TR
— directors’ emoluments (Note 13) —EE5ME (M5E13) 3,631 4,253
— salaries and allowances for —Hth B THe &2
other staffs 3,742 4,199
— retirement benefit scheme —iRURE R FT 8 3k
contribution (excluding directors) (TBEES) 267 198
7,640 8,650
and after crediting: S =ENE
Service income from provision of REYRE LS ERS 2 RIFWA
logistics and promotion services - 44
Interest income B YA 45 156

Recovery of write down of inventories 17 & i )& # @] 155 516
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2017:

seven) directors during the year were as follows:

13.EEM &

FRENKEN TN (ZF—LF: &
fEFEaZMENT

Chang
Lau Law Wing  Wong Lit
Siu Ying Luo Chun Seng, Chor, Lam Bao Kang Lo
(“Mr. Lau”) Xi Zhi Kwan Victor Alexis  Wang Yu  Man Kit Rong  Wai Shun Total
EIN
(T8%%]) BBz BRH BikE B9 IR WK  BER  RER it
(Note 1) (Note 2)  (Note 3) (Note 4) ~ (Note 5)  (Note 6)
(fi3E1) (BzE2)  (MEs) (W) (Wa5)  (HisEe)
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TExr  TEr  TExr  ThET  TEr AL TExn  TEAL  TEn
2018 ZE-)\E
Fees [k - - 100 42 - - 100 58 58 358
Salaries and allowances e REg 2,769 - - - - 464 - = = 3,233
Retirement benefit scheme RIVEFIF B
contribution 3 - - - - 37 - - - 40
Total emoluments Hews 2,772 - 100 42 - 501 100 58 58 3,631
2017 ZEtE
Fees ik - - 100 100 75 - % - - 300
Salaries and allowances HeREh 3,342 110 - - - 449 - - - 3,901
Retirement benefit RIVEFIF B
scheme contribution 3 13 - - - 36 - - - 52
Total emoluments Heag 3,345 123 100 100 75 485 25 - - 4,253
Notes: (TEX
1. Mr. Luo Xi Zhi resigned as the executive director of the 1. BABZRER-_Z—N\FMNA++HEE
Company on 17 April 2018. RRARMITES
2. Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor retired as the independent non- 2. BkBEER-_ZT—NEXNA—HEER
executive director of the Company on 1 June 2018. NEVBIEHITESE -
3. Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis resigned as the independent non- 3. ®IWMEER—_Z—F+FE+HA=H&HIXK
executive director of the Company on 3 October 2017. NEEBIIEHITES
4. Mr. Lam Man Kit was appointed as the independent non- 4, MXBEER_Z—+E+A=-0EZF
executive director of the Company on 3 October 2017. BRRNRBILIERNITES -
5. Mr. Bao Kang Rong was appointed as the non-executive 5. MBELREER-_ZT-—NFAANBEZRT
director of the Company on 4 June 2018. BRAFERNITTESE -
6. Dr. Lo Wai Shun was appointed as the independent non- 6. HUEEHELIHN _ZT—N\FANHEZT

executive director of the Company on 4 June 2018.

RARFBYLIFRITES
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14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2017: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note
13 to the consolidated financial statements above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2017: three) individuals
were as follows:

e KER
Retirement benefit scheme contribution & 7K 18 #1) 51 2] £ 7k

Salaries and allowances

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/% 7T LA A
None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

14. EEM £

AEBRUKSFHALH EFWRL (ZF
—tF M) RARRFES HMSHEHR
EXHEEMBRRMFIBZWEFH - £
T=(ZE—tF =) AL zB2
T

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT TET

1,429 1,392

50 54

1,479 1,446
ZEREZMEN T THIHE:

2018 2017
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE®E BEHEAE
3 3

REAFERBEFERN AUKSHFAL
R EWEE MM E -

BHE-_Z-N\FRk_ZE—ttFT+H
=T —RLEE AERBERLIUES
AT (BEES)INEAME  ERB
BHEZEMASIEMARNERR 2B €k E
B -

1

(0]

1
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

15. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2017: Nil).

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share for the
year is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$7,799,000 (2017: loss
of HK$111,714,000) and the weighted average number
of 917,779,442 (2017: 911,673,645) shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share because the Group has no dilutive
potential shares for the year ended 31 December
2018.

No diluted loss per share was presented as the effect
of all potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

15. KRR

RAFELBEFEA B8R HIR
BB B 2 MBS B AR I E B R £ 17
BRE(ZT—tF 8)-

16. BRER (HBE)

(a)

(b)

EREZEF - (FE)

FRAEFMN (BB HBREAXRQA
WA ANEMLFAEMN7,799,000%
T (ZF— 5 :EHE111,714,000
BIL)RFRBBETRGD 2 NEF
B 917,779,442 (Z T —HF -
911,673,6450% ) 5+ & -

ERBERF - (EE)

AR AEERBE T N\F+_HA
=t RALEFELEESEERD
BWERETRNEGREARRTE
|§J0

HREBEE-_ZFT—tH&+-_A=1t—H
HFEZRABEE BRI AREE
MIE MW T SEEEE-
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BMER&E
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor ~ Construction

improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total

BA -
HEXE KERRE AE ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET FET FTET

COST B

At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 4,324 3,135 2,144 6,034 15,637
Exchange adjustments ERACES 307 158 35 489 989
Additions wm - 6 - - 6
Disposal & - - (62) - (62)
Write-off s - (64) - - (64)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-A=1+—H 4,631 3,235 2,117 6,523 16,506
Exchange adjustments B X A% (155) (101) (25) (326) (607)
Additions il 5,807 13 - - 5,820
Write-off i - 6) - - (6)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 10,283 3,141 2,092 6,197 21,713

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND Z3tirE KA &

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-H—H 1,871 2,630 2,087 - 6,588
Exchange adjustments ERACES 216 151 26 271 664
Provided for the year FEEE 229 99 3 - 331
Eliminated on disposal &R R - - (20) - (20)
Eliminated on write-off MR ER - (64) - - (64)
Impairment loss REEE 2,315 398 - 6,252 8,965
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+H+-A=+—-H 4,631 3,214 2,096 6,523 16,464
Exchange adjustments ER AR 213) (102) (24) (326) (665)
Provided for the year FERE 198 13 - - 211
Eliminated on write-off R ER - (6) - - (6)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZBE-N\F+=-A=1+—H 4,616 3,119 2,072 6,197 16,004
CARRYING VALUE REE

At 31 December 2018 RZF-NF+=-A=1+—H 5,667 22 20 - 5,709

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H - 21 21 - 42
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18. MINING RIGHT

COST
At 1 January 2017
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2017
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017
Exchange adjustments
Impairment for the year

At 31 December 2017
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right was amortised using the units

18. BRUE#E

AR
R-E—+F—HF—H
TR

RZE—tF+=_A=+—H
& 5§ %

R-ZZ—N\F+=-A=+—H
Bt R REE
R-_E—+F—HA—H
R

FARE

R—ZZE—tF+=_A=+—H
E 5

RZE—NF+=_A=+—H

ARMEE
R-ZE—-N\F+-_A=+—H

R_E—+F+_A=+—H

of production method based on the proven and probable $ o

mineral reserves.

HK$’'000
TAET

408,480
33,120

441,600
(22,080)

419,520

239,964
27,047
174,589

441,600
(22,080)

419,520

REEEREBERNTEAILEEAmE
TTRBRBOVER - REETDERC KA
METBERENEENAEREME
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18. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit

After the expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation permit on
25 September 2012, Sifa Mining obtained twice a renewed
mining operating permit for 2 years from the Ministry of
Land and Resources of the PRC (i #E A R H MEE +
&R E) (“MLR”), under which Sifa Mining was allowed to
carry out exploration activities only, but not exploitation
activities. The latest 2-year mining operating permit was
expired on 25 September 2016. Since then, the Group had
been preparing for the application of renewal for the mining
operation permit.

On 21 December 2017, the Department of Land and
Resources of Hubei Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “DLR”) issued an announcement (the “DLR
Announcement”) in respect of the deadline of application
of renewal for the expired mining operating permit. The
DLR instructed the owners of the expired mining operating
permits as identified in the DLR Announcement had to
furnish the application procedures for the renewal before
28 February 2018. If the owners fail to do so, they were
required to de-register the mining operating permits before
31 March 2018 by themselves or the DLR will de-register
their permits instead. The Group, through its lawyer,
submitted a letter on 8 February 2018 to the DLR for the
clarification of the Group’s situation on whether the Group
was allowed to extend the renewal application deadline or
submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
the future.

18. RIERE (&)

PRI o &

EFHRBEFIER_ZE-—_FNLA
“tHBEmRE BEBEECMAIAIEH
ZEARANBEELERE (TELERH])
RO REMFN L EERBTAIE - &L
BBBEEEREEETHRESMIEFRRE
B RIMEMRBHAAFCNR _F—X
FAAZtTHAREM- B NEBIEEE
B B IRIERT Al A8 o

RZE—tF+_AZ+—H HEAR
HAELHIEE B+ ERE ([B+&ERE])
ERPEEECERRETIFE 2 &%EH
REHAM([BEIEREQM]) B+
BREERN BTERBEAMEAZEE
MERETBZEBEAER - N\F=
A+ N\BAARLEE BB RF Wik
EARGETKBABFEF BEBREER-E
—N\F=ZA=+—HAT BT ERESY
FLRAELTERESEHETTE RN
EER T N\F-_ANBBEBEZAMRA
B+ ERERX —HEG URAEER
CRECREERB HEHRIMNAR
R REAAIERBEERAEE 2B
e
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18.

—NEFETZA=tT—HILFE

MINING RIGHT (Continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continueqd)

Up to the date of the 2017 Annual Report, the Group had
not received the reply from the DLR and was not able to
furnish the application before the deadline. The directors
were of the opinion that there was a material uncertainty
on whether the Group would be successful in the future
application for the mining operating permit because of
the DLR Announcement. The directors had factored this
into their assessment of the recoverable amount of the
Group’s mining right and related plant and equipment,
and the carrying amount of the related deferred tax liability
(the “mining activities related assets and liability”) as at 31
December 2017, and on the assumption that the Group
could not renew the permit, provided a full impairment of
the mining right of HK$174,589,000 and related plant and
equipment of HK$8,965,000 and derecognised the related
deferred tax liability of HK$41,116,000 in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group,
through its lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone
calls and resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018
for the clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR
did not make reply to the Group’s enquiries. The directors
were advised by the lawyer that, in accordance with the
rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group has lost its
mining right and no longer entitled to any benefit to be

derived from the mining right.

18. RIERE (&)

B A& (F)

BEEZZT—tFFHRAH- ﬁillxw
WliﬁﬁﬁZ”% B REER & 1& HIRR
mkﬁ$m°§$’ﬁ’$%laéﬁgﬁ
NEBERETUERR L EREAHMT
FERTHEE EFRNTHEAEEN
E—+tFF+_A=Z+—HZRBEKIENH
MEREETRESEREERCHIES
EEREE ([REXBEFEEERAE]) K
BRI ERZ UHREAEERGEEE
FFAlRE - A B ERIEAE174,589,0007% 7T & A
B I 7% 158,965,000/ ST He 2 BERE
BE IREBEE_FT—+tF+t=ZA=1+—
HIEFEREBEEREUERERIRLEHIE
£ 541,116,000/ 7T °

BE_T-\F+-_A=+—HLFE"
AEECERERMERANERRENE
RR-ZF-N\F_AELH 2R 2T AZE
BELTERE UWEBAEEZBEN A
e EtEREYENBAEE SR -&
FEEMERN REPERERERG K
SEHOREERBELTBAZERER
EAEZ EMAME -
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MINING RIGHT (Continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continueqd)

The directors had carefully reassessed and reviewed the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of the
mining business (the “CGU”) to which the mining right
is allocated. As at 31 December 2018, the directors
determined the recoverable amount of the CGU should be
nil as the directors are of the opinion that the DLR is unlikely
to grant the mining operating permit to the Company nor
to other market participants, if any. The directors have also
considered the fair value of the plant and equipment related
to the mining business is minimal as most of them were the
infrastructure that attached to the mining site which were
not removable and not saleable.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in unlisted

associates
Share of post-acquisition reserves FE (5 W B 12 R4
Exchange adjustments P 5 F &

Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2018 and
2017 are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

18. BRIEHE (&)

B A& (F)

EXCRESHTELEHNED LRERE
ZRBEEBRcELABN([(ReELE
I zaReE @ - R_FT—N\F+_H
=t—R EFBETERSELEUZITK
ODeHERT REASEZRAELER
BAIRAREAARAGSEMTS2EE
(B BEERBEFAE - EFNBRHRE
X2 BB k&EZ A FERE: R
ARREDBE N R B RES 2 B2
Jie AR IR A & -

19. BEQTRZRE

RIEEMBERRZEERAK

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT
4,912 4,912
(4,352) (3,705)
(62) (62)
498 1,145

RZF-NERZF—EF+ZA=1—
A2 B & DR IBERNR G M B A M T
42 o

1

(0]

7
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

i) Summarised financial information of material i)
associate, adjusted for any difference in
accounting policies:

Ever Trillion Investments Limited

Current assets MEEE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current liabilities REBAG

Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Group’s share of net assets AEBEGERE AR EEFE

of the associate

Year ended 31 December BHET-_A=+—HILFE
Revenue W =

Loss from continuing operation R EFEKL L X 2 E18
Dividend received from associate B B & 2 AW ER R &

ii)  Since 2016, the Group discontinued recognition of i)
its share of losses of an associate, Beijing Feiying,
as summarised below:

Unrecognised share of profit/(loss) R R DB & A 2
of associate for the year FE&AN/ (&EE)

Accumulated unrecognised share ZiTF KHERD(HEE QG2
of loss of associate &8

19. BE QB2 RE (&)

EABENAZHBEEHNBE (Eht
FHETBEZEZFAHE) -

Ever Trillion Investments Limited

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTAT
1,166 -

- 2,713

- (38)

1,166 2,675
498 1,145
(1,510) (13)

BE=F—NFEUK XEFE LI

REASUBELATILAREZES
HEE 20

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHExT FET

3,156 (2,328)

(3,666) (6,822)
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20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. Hb Bt & E
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Non-current assets (Note a) kRBEE (MaFa)

Financial assets at fair value through & AF{EFTF AEBRZ

profit or loss comprise: WBEERE:
Unlisted equity investments FELMBRERE 1,619 -
Unlisted fund investment FEMESKE 3,731 -
5,350 -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERERE:
comprise:
Unlisted equity investments, at cost ~ 3F E TR R & - 1R A - 14,977
Less: allowance for impairment W B E R - (14,908)
- 69
Unlisted fund investment, at cost FELTESEE BN - 2,380
5,350 2,449
Current assets (Note b) MEEE (Mab)
Financial assets at fair value through 2 A F{EzF A8 2
profit or loss comprise: WBEERE:
Listed equity investments in PRC PR ETARERE 536 -
Held-for-trading investments comprise: #H{EE B % & £ 3E :
Listed equity investments in PRC PR ETARERE - 1,251

536 1,251
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20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

21.

Note a:

Note b:

Both unlisted equity investments and unlisted fund
investment were measured at cost less impairment as
at 31 December 2017 because the range of reasonable
fair values estimates was so significant that the directors
of the Group were of the opinion that fair value of the
investments could not be measured reliably.

These investments were reclassified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss on 1 January 2018 under
HKFRS. The directors of the Group intend to hold these
investments for long term strategic purpose.

Unlisted investments are investments in couple of private
entities incorporated in different jurisdictions that engaged
in different business.

The listed equity investments are classified within level 1
of the fair value hierarchy.

CLUB MEMBERSHIPS

cosT R
At 1 January 2017

Exchange adjustments & A3
At 31 December 2017 g2
Exchange adjustments & A A

At 31 December 2018

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

(B

ARMEE

20. Hitt B &EE (&)

Mizta

BfEEb

FLEMEERERFELTESRER
—E—+E+Z A=+ HERERAN
BREFE RRAESEAFEM
FREESK AEEEERREET
R ERSREZATE:-

RZZE-NF-A—R ZERER
BEEEMBREENRENDRRE
RPEFABRZHBEE-AEE
EFHMERHRBEENRAEZER

FLMRERNE TR AR BERER
MR R ETREBZ L EERE
2B

FHRERES AN TEERNE
—o

1. e

RZE—+tF—H—H

—tE+=A=+—A

R-ZE-NF+-A=+—8H

R—_ZE—+F—H—H"
—E—+E+A=t+—8BK
—E-NF+-_A=+—H

RZE—NF+_A=+—H

HK$'000
TAET

1,368
16

1,384
(11)

1,373

496

877

888
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21. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS (Continuead)

22.

Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which
represents the second-hand market price less cost of
disposal.

INVENTORIES

Inventories comprise finished goods in:

BOHEREES
e ER

Mobile phones business
Mining business

Included in the cost of inventories recognised as expense
for the year ended 31 December 2018 were recovery
of write down of inventories of HK$155,000 (2017:
HK$516,000) which was caused by the increase in the net
realisable value.

E MR

—NF+ZA=t-ALEE
1. 8fE% (&)

B e B AR E B RRE R R
FRo-mAeMeREaRER LT
BAFEREERAEE TR -FmiH
{ER B -

o

22. 7€
FEBEERKS:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
95 867
- 1,231
95 2,008
BE-_T—-N\E+-A=+—BItFEEZ

ERREAIZEFERABIEARAIER
SFE I AN = A 2 17 & #MUR # [E155,000

BT (ZZ—+4:516,000/87T) °
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEU & 5 R 3R
B RET A

Trade receivables
Less: accumulated allowance

Value-added tax receivables JE Y38 B #Y
Prepayments to suppliers TEAT L FE P 3R IB
Other receivables and deposits HiEWERR RiES

(Note) (PfF=E)
Less: accumulated allowance B RET R

Trade and other receivables

Note: The other receivables of HK$22,960,000 represented the
amount due from an entity controlled by a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary as at 31 December 2018. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year.

The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its
trade customers but it also allows certain trade customers
a credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance) presented
based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period:

0 to 30 days TE=+H
31 to 90 days =t+—Zh+H
91 to 365 days Nt+—==BA-+HH

23. EWE 5 R K H 1t B W AR X

FE A 5 BR 3R B At B U BR R

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
508 14,148

(52) (14,135)

456 13

259 379
40,122 36,641
32,262 7,847
(30,917) (32,239)
42,182 12,641

BT+ E b E U2 BR 3022,960,000/8 TTiE R =&
—NF+ZA=+t—HEK—FHHNBL
Bl — B IR AR TR R 2 B 2 FRIA
ZEeEAEER SERANR—FNE
o

AEB-RERKEHEFBANEBGIA
BRGTETEZEP=TE2LTHZE
Ef-RERYPR 2 BUE 5K (B
BB REZAHEINZBREONAOT :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET

- 3

- 9

456 1

456 13
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its
credit limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment history
and good credit rating under the Group’s internal credit
assessment.

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end of
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management are of the opinion
that the fundamental credit quality of the customers has not
deteriorated.

Less than 90 days past due wmE LR H
Over 90 days but less than 365 days #iEifE:@ L+ H
past due

BLR=BXRT+HH

23. EWE 5 R K H 1t B W AR X

(%)

ZMEMRFELA ARBEEFHEER
FZEEEE RERATEERSE  THR
ARTEPZREB -REASEANBEE
AP d - RBP D BE AR B HI IR KRB 2 e W &
FERFA BB R LB ERERRT -

AEBEYERESERFATAERR-
UTARERPEEACABERERE
RREPZEAEEERT RB(LME
AEBYEFHREBRREBEZESER
ZEREERRER DT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
- 12

456 1
456 13
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

23. EWE 5 R K H 1t B W AR X
(#&)

BB 55 B 502 2 T B R IR
HZ2H

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET
Balance at beginning of year F 46,374 24,028
Exchange adjustments (ER I 170 (299)
Impairment losses recognised FARRZBERSE
during the year 23 26,530
Reversal of impairment loss Fr—RmEEIZAZ
recognised in respect of T8 IE TR
prepayment paid to a supplier REBEEE (363) -
Recovery of bad debts 1 [51 42 AR (14,083) -
Written off of allowance as 1 48 fE i 8 A A AT g [E)
uncollectible (1,152) (3,885)
Balance at end of year F R 30,969 46,374

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in Note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables is a provision
for individually impaired trade and other receivables of
HK$30,969,000 (2017: HK$46,374,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$73,151,000 (2017:
HK$59,015,000).

The individually impaired trade and other receivables relate
to debtors that were in financial difficulties or were in default
in both interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

AEERBHEEMBHRRMTAAEZE
aT R W R B B R 2 B E R -

Fitgh EUCE 5 R R E A BRI 2 R
ERECEREENBECEKESE
R K H Ath JE YRR R 2 #5 #5.30,969,0007% 7T

— T —+F 46,374,000/ 7T ) - BEE AT
AREE A73,151,0008 T (=& — £ :
59,015,000/ 7T ) °

E @RI E 2 U E 5 iR 5K & H At U R
B K b A\ B 7 TR B sl i R M B K SR
TR ERH A FEHIE 7] U B FE YR K
Z—#D e
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2018 are the
amounts in RMB of approximately RMB21,806,000 (2017:
RMB12,380,000) in form of cash on hand and at banks.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

24,

25.

FEUR, PRSI A R SR AR R
Z KB

i

BHRAEER THERAREREER-

et

RERAEEEY

REBZHReRREEEMEEULREEH
EBREEZNEEE ARBRBTE-
RZE-—NF+ZA=1T—H B2 KR
CEBVBEAARBFEZFERR
TR %4 AR #21,806,0000T (ZZF—+
F: AR#¥12,380,0007T) - ARKETRZ H
RABAEMER-

RITES LI BRITFRN R I E
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting

period:

Trade payables:
Over 90 days

Value-added tax payables
Prepayments from customers
Other payables and accruals (Note)

e E 5 8RN
HBEnLt+a

FETIB B
PN RIA

HiENERARESFER

(K

Note: The other payables of HK$22,746,000 represented the
amount due to an entity controlled by a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary as at 31 December 2018. The

amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one

year.

26. BN E SRR EMENRK

REBPRZENESERREZEAHZ2

F 2 BRE AT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
42 204

42 204

18 -

143 1,221
38,836 24,379
39,039 25,804

BT - Ho & T BR 3022,746,000/8 TLHE R = &
—NF+ZA=+—BEN—HBEHRBER
Bl — RIS 2 BB 2 R -
ZERERERR REREAR-FANE

e
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27. OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured other borrowings FEREMEE
— repayable within one year —AR—FHNEE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two subsidiaries
of the Group and the lender of the above borrowings
entered into a waiver of debt assignments. The lender
is also the debtor of one of the above subsidiaries of
the Group with the outstanding trade receivables of
HK$14,083,000 being fully impaired in previous years.
Under the waiver of debt assignments, all parties agreed
that the outstanding trade receivables would be fully
set off with other borrowings. The interest payables of
HK$11,922,000 were also waived accordingly. Therefore,
a recovery of bad debts of HK$14,083,000 and write back
of interest payables of HK$11,922,000 were recognised in
profit or loss in current year.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have
any banking facilities.

27. HfE &

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET

- 14,878

BE-_Z-N\E+-_A=1+—HILFE"
AEBMERBARE LMEEZER
FIVEBEZER R ZBEANRAL
HEPh—HAEENBARIZEBHBA B
M oK (8 2 FE W B S BR 514,083,000/% 7T
ERBTFETERE - REEBHEZR
e FMAANTRE HAEEERE
SEFEBHEHEMEE - BN E
11,922,000 JL N E AR FEE#8 2 o B 1t -
Uiz 2] 2 R 14,083,000 7T & & 1+ F1| 8 il =]
11,922,000 TE R A FE 2B A

=7
s ©

RZF-NERZF—EF+ZA=1—
A ANEE Y ERITRE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised EERAE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREMGAE T2 ERR
Issued and fully paid ERTRBERABRA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREMBAE T LRR
At beginning of year RET]

Issue of shares upon placing (Note) REBRETRR (HF)
At end of year RER

Note: On 1 February 2017, the Company completed a placing and
a total of 85,716,000 subscription shares have been placed
at the subscription price of HK$0.35 per subscription share.

28. R
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
EBERYA
2018 2017 2018 2017
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T TET TET
2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000 200,000
917,779 832,063 91,778 83,206
- 85,716 - 8,572
917,779 917,779 91,778 91,778

i R=F—tE A —H AREER—HE
fltE =18 - 4 3£85,716,0000% REEA (5 2
ERBESKRRBERNDOISBITEE -
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 May
2014 which was effective at the same day and will expire
on 28 May 2024. The primary purpose of the Scheme is
to provide incentives to directors, eligible employees and
other qualified persons who in the opinion of the board of
directors has made or will make contributions which are or
may be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (ii) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

2. LR RERTIRZR S

ARBR-_Z—OFRA -+ /\BERA—
TRRERRERT 8 TR R B AR - AR
—E-WFERAA-TNAHAEm FTEZE
ZENANEFERRYAREREN G
ZIEHRSEHBR AT REBRERM 2 E
F RERRBEREMAERALTHR TR
B o

BB S ERTHRAEZRE T AQF]
EETREFERREASEERBNRE
EHFEELBRATTREBREM 2 AR
BERIA B AR E QB2 ERNE
£ RBE -ftER KB BF 2HB ¥
BHEALEHN BXERINEMERK
AAASEPEE T AR ERERREAR
REBD 2 BRE ERBERTIEIR
() EE - () B IR B BB 3P 2
Yo i 8 R (i) Bt A7 70 B2 4% i SO 93 11 B A
hAR S BEBR Az FHRHEZRS
EFoMBEHZBRAER BBk E &
ZURRBTHEEITRAZ10%BR -

REARRBIIRRE S - (VRIRET S 7] B
RHBREZBEAROBE  TEBHA
RNERMEREEDBETRD 210% - K (i)W
FEHEARERN T @A/ BERNEERTE R
13 B AR 2 AB R B BT R B 1T AR
HE THEBEAQRERNEEEETR
MZ1% °

BIEZAR 2R RIFAMYIZ BE AT A
Bo WARERMABILRE 2BREST
XM1ETZER-
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29.

—NEFETZA=tT—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, there were no outstanding shares in

respect of which options had been granted and remained

outstanding under the Scheme (2017:

11,900,000

outstanding share options) as a result of all the options

were lapsed during the year.

The following table discloses movement of the Company’s

share options held by employees and consultants (including
directors) during the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017:

Name Date of grant

£8 RHAH

Category I:

58

- Directors 12.7.2013

-8% Ik
+A+ZH

Category I

F28:

- Employees 12.7.2013

-8 “E-CF
+A+ZH

Category lI:

£=8:

- Consultants 12.7.2013

-Bf —E-=F
+A+ZH

Total for all categories

FrR BRI

Exercisable at the end of the year

RERFTHE

Weighted average exercise price

WETSEE

Weighted average remaining contractual life
at the end of the year
RELZMETHRTAHH

Exercisable period

i

12.7.2013t0 11.7.2018
E-CELATZAE
ZZ-\§tA+-A

12.7.201310 11.7.2018
ZE-CRLATIRE
- \FtAt-H

12.7.201310 11.7.2018
ZE-CFLATIRE
- \FtAt-H

Exercise price
per share

BRTEE

HKS

BT

0.255

0.255

0.255

20. LRP R ERN

R2ZR5 (&)

RZE-NF+ZA=+—H BHREH
BRRED R F AR B I ER T2
Eﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%%%ZH@E%
TR (ZZ—+1 4 11,900,00017 5 A 57
2 BEARHE) -

TERBEBEBE_T-N\FR_T—+tF
t=A=+- amigfga&gaﬁnﬂ (B
BER)MHARRBREZES:
Outstanding at Exercised  Outstanding at Lapsed  Outstanding at
1.1.2017  during the year 31.12.2017  during the year 31.12.2018
RB-t% R=B-N%
RoB-t% t=A t=A
-A-R =t-8 Sqr=F]

HATE ERE MR EREH HRITE

11,500,000 - 11,500,000 (11,500,000) -
100,000 - 100,000 (100,000) -
300,000 - 300,000 (300,000) -

11,900,000 - 11,900,000 (11,900,000) -

11,900,000 11,900,000 -

HK$0.25578 T - HK$0.255%7T  (HKS$0.255)% 7T N/A
AER

158 yearsF 0.53 year® N/A
&R
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

31.

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 January 2017
Exchange adjustments
Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 11)

At 31 December 2017 and 2018 IS

GOVERNMENT GRANT

A government grant of HK$5,700,000 was awarded to
a subsidiary of the Group by the PRC local government
agencies as an incentive primarily to encourage and
support its business development in local district. Under the
terms of this government grant, the grant would be recalled
if the subsidiary could not meet certain level of accumulated
Value-added tax (“VAT’) and EIT payments during a period
of three years up to 2021.

RZE—tF—H—H
& 5§ %
FAFEEZ (BE11)

30. EEBRERE

TRARAFELBEFEANDERZE
EHAREREES:

Revaluation of
mining right
arising from

acquisition
SRS K
RS
HK$’000
FETT

39,686
1,430
(41,116)

31. BUF #8 B)

AEE 2z — BB A R T B E A%
&1 BT 45 85,700,000/ 7T 1 /45 22 R -
TERBEAEIHEREM XK ER-
R SZ BT 8 B 2 M6 K - i % P B R AR
BE_T - —F=FHHERNEEERE
TRFHEER ([BER]) REEMEHRN
FOKF - BIl 46 B & B M =] o
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32. ACQUISITION 32. WEEE1E

On 18 November 2018, the Group acquired 100% of
the equity instruments of EBEEBAI KR BEEXAR A
Al (“Wanchuang”), a company whose principal activity
is manufacture and sales of electronic equipment. The
acquisition was made with the aims to expand the Group’s
existing scale of operation and enlarge the Group’s market
presences.

Wanchuang has not commenced business up to 31
December 2018.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of
Wanchung as at the date of acquisition were:

R-Z-NF+—-A+N\B TEEKE
EEBRIRBEBEXEARAA([EA])Z
100%BATER BRIZEFBEXBARER
HEETRE-ETRBEREEERSL
SEZAEZEMRE TBAARNKE 2™
BB R

EE-F-\FT-A=—A B8N

ENGE SR

REBEH BalzABREERARL
ARSEVE

Fair value
AFE
HK$’000
FET
Leasehold improvements HEXE 5,807
Other receivables H b U AR X 114
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 283
Government grant U #8 Bh (5,650
Other payables Hth B BR 3R (531)
Net identifiable assets acquired Frisis 2 Al Rl & &= FE 23
Consideration for acquisition WEEBERE 23
HK$’000
FET
Consideration satisfied by: REBATHRER:

- Cash -8 23

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEEHEEA RS RAFERE
— Cash consideration —-BERE (23)
- Cash and cash equivalents - BeRBEEEEY 283
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OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made minimum lease payments
of approximately HK$1,459,000 (2017: HK$1,467,00) under
operating leases.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —F A
In the second to fifth years inclusive % - FZ=FERHF
(BREEEMF)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties and common areas
in the mining site. Leases are negotiated and rentals are
fixed for terms ranging from one to two years (2017: one to
two years).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

34.

E MR

—N\F+ZA=+—HIEFE
2«(#&*&@/]

L EBEBEMA

FR AEERBELE
e 451,459,000 L (= F
1,467,000/ 7T) °

BN Z &K
—t 5

REFBEER AEERBE AT HEAE
HMMBER TR 2 HEMERAN
ZARZERSEAENT :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
684 895

39 333

723 1,228

REBONREREERETHRIEME
EESrmtRENzZEE BORES

i’ﬂﬁ_:tliﬁi (_'7' _‘t¢ . _:tliﬁi)z
FHERRETE -

XREE
RZE—NFERZE—+tF+_A=+—

B ARELEEFAKAREE-

203



204

Chi Fortune ||1>|A|I|l Limited

na
B REIZEIRAR A /)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as below:

Contracted, but not provided for B4 BREHEEE
- leasehold improvements —fMEEE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

35.

36.

BEAXREE

R-E-NFER-_ZFT—tF+_A=+—
EIﬁzﬂib”%?/m\ﬂﬂ%#&%aﬂm}aﬁﬁZ?ﬁEH
BAEIENT

The Group
EE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT THET
205 1,365
R KR A=t &

AEBSMBEREAREREEEERHIE
REERFE ([FH8]]) A 2EEMT
ABEFIzESBAKEEEIRTAE IR
BAEZRA BRERERBRBARAAE
FEZ R AE B R N B BB 2
—REERRBEBIEL R E -

AEFBETHRZMBAREES /T EK
FERZBREERRBATEKE %

FHE QB AER S & AN 2 B E B R A%
Lﬁwaﬂ SRS REREENRERES -
AEEHZENRENTE 2 HE—BERIE
s E SR
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37. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(a) The balance was unsecured, interest-free and

(b)

repayable on demand.

Amount due to a related party

Current Liabilities RBAE

— Mr. Lau (Note i) — 254 (BEED)
Non-current Liabilities EREBAE

— Mr. Lau (Note ii) — 8% (M 5Eii)

Notes:

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

On 31 December 2018, Mr.
HK$13,680,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000) to the
Company which is due on 31 December 2021 and

Lau advanced

interest-free. The borrowing is carried at amortised cost
using an imputed interest rate of 4.75% per annum. The
imputed interest portion of HK$1,814,000 was credited
to other reserve under attributable to owners of the

Company.

7. HEAT2HE

(a) ZEHRERT 2ENRARERE

e

(b) BN —EHZEALZHE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
6,493 165
11,866 -
18,359 165

BHRAEEMR RERBRERE

= o

RZTE—-—NF+=_A=+—8"
21 5% 4 7] K 1 5] 2 113,680,000/%8
7 (HHE % AR %12,000,0007T)
ER T =—F+=_A=+—HZ
BRep -EECRAGEENEXTEF
4.75% IR A ANER - (EE T B H
1£1,814,0008 STEt AR R AR A
JEAh 2 H i 4 -
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37. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (Continued) 7. BEATZHE (£)
(c) Related party transactions (c) BBEALXE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FAT
Purchase from an entity A — % FEFE R AR S 2
controlled by EREEE
a non-controlling shareholder 395 -
Commission income received B— R IEEH IR E TR 2
from an entity controlled by FERKEZES KA
a non-controlling shareholder 272 -
(d) Compensation of key management personnel. (d) TEEEANSZFHH
The remuneration of directors and other members of FRAEENHEMTEEEAEKEZ
the key management during the year was as follows: e T :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short-term benefits HEIREF 4,046 4,638
Post-employment benefits BERE R A 54 70

4,100 4,708
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38. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38. SIS BEFRER 2

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

At 1 January 2018

Changes from cash flows:

Advance from a related party

Repayment to a related party

Total changes from

financing cash flows:

Other changes:

Debt assignment
(Note 27)

Imputed interest (Note 37(b))

Exchange adjustments

Total other changes

At 31 December 2018

RZFE—N\F
—A—H

BEREEH:

KE—REEALZ
R

i 2

EEE
(Kt5E27)

EEME (FFE37(b))

3,0

Ho 5 B 4R BR

RZE—NEF
+=-—A=+—8H

BERELDELZABYHEK:

Amount due to Other

a related party borrowings Total
Ef—2

BEALTZNE Hite & wEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTET THET
165 14,878 15,043
34,145 - 34,145
(14,291) - (14,291)
19,854 - 19,854
- (14,134) (14,134)
(1,814) - (1,814)
154 (744) (590)
(1,660) (14,878) (16,538)
18,359 - 18,359
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38. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38. SIS BEFRER 2

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) (4&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

BERMETHELZABHER: (£)

(Continued)
Amount due to Other
a related party borrowings Total
FER—%
BE AT 25 HmEE 1Az
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FHE T T T FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—H—H 1,296 13,762 15,058
Changes from cash flows: REREZH
Repayment to a related party [EiE — & &AL
B (1,131) - (1,131)
Total changes from MERSREED
financing cash flows: FEEEN (1,131) - (1,131)
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 8 B - 1,116 1,116
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=-—A=+—H 165 14,878 15,043
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. 2 A T B S 4h SR &
COMPANY
2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt TExT FABT
Non-current Asset IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIEE 27,413 22,935
Current Assets RBEE
Other receivables E A WL HR 31 292 287
Amount due from fEU — R B A R 2 3E
a subsidiary 20,641 21,728
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 12 12
20,945 22,027
Current Liabilities RBasE
Other payables H fth JE A BR X 2,458 1,460
Amounts due to FETH B A R 2 3 E
subsidiaries 52,010 49,830
54,468 51,290
Net Current Liabilities REBABETFE (83,523) (29,263)

Total Assets less Current HWEERBRRBEE

Liabilities (6,110) (6,328)
Capital and Reserves EXARFEE
Share capital g7 28 91,778 91,778
Reserves {1 40 (97,888) (98,106)
(6,110) (6,328)
On behalf of the Board REXESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
2/ NERE FREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

] EF
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40. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 40. &< D T £ 1S

Share  Contributed  Translation ~Share option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EE B4R BERE BRERE RiER aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TEL TR Tix T
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii) (Note iv)
(Ft3Ei) (WsEi) (P i) (MisEiv)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-—t5-A—H 395,962 40,948 38,810 991 (570,932) (94,221)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (23,404) (23,404)
Issue of ordinary shares upon ~ RIPEER BT LB
share placing 21,429 - - - - 21,429
Exchange differences arising RpEmMEL ELZE
on translation - - (1,910) - - (1,910)
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
+ZA=+—-H 417,391 40,948 36,900 991 (594,336) (98,106)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (2,170) (2,170)
Lapse of share options BREXH - - - (991) 991 -
Exchange differences arising ApEmEs 7 ENER
on translation - - 2,388 - - 2,388
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\%
+-F=1+-8 417,391 40,948 39,288 - (595,515) (97,888)
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40. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are lapsed during the year 2018, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transaction in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

40. QBB (F)

GEE

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

B aEERERACEBLEEABE LR
o

ERBBRABAMBRAREARARKER
AZRERRESEARAREETHR
Bl U RS T BT AR (5 2 T B AR A 2R
& B E4AFFE1T1,000,0000% 7 41 A% A %
DIRRZ RIBME 2 Z5

BERBRERAARRMBHRERENLER
BIERmEE W BB

BREREEREEREINR - N\FX
M BRI 2 AFE FEREE MR
RIMFARUBRD RERN R 2R F 2 &
AREE SR

211



212 China Fortune Holdings Limited
REREZERARAR

X%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE
41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES M. FTEHNHE LR ER

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are incorporated with limited liability, at 31 December 2018

RoE-NER-F—LET A=+
Az ARAEEHEAT (B AEMRT

and 2017 are as follows: ZERRAR)FBOT

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

Principal activity

BT KRDRFifs
R#RKRE/ ERTRAEE
WA R BB AL B it B ARER HAMEAR 2 LA TEXH
2018 2017
Express Fortune British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
ARERES E@ERI00ET REER
Express Fortune Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% 100%  Provision of management
Non-voting deferred services
HK$5,000,000
(Note)
REBRAA Bk LRR10E T REEE RS
BREERLTRNH
5,000,000 7T
(BEE)
Fortune (Shanghai) International ~ PRC US$28,100,000 100% 100%  Trading in mobile phones
Trading Co., Ltd.
RE(LE)EREZBRAR  PHE 28,100,000% 7 BEEVHE:
Sifa Mining PRC RMB1,000,000 50.8% 50.8%  Exploration and
extraction of
mining resources
BEEE HE AR #1,000,0007T HRRARBEER
Eagles Fund Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited
ZERSHEREABRDA Bk EEA%10,0007% 7T RERKR
Zhuhai Reminda PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 51%  Trading in mobile phones
KEERE HE AR #10,000,0007 BEEVHEF
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continueq)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREHR

Zhejiang Aoying
LR E

Chongaing Yuanjia
EEER

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL R

PRC
P

PRC
e

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRfT
REERE/
HREx

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007C

RMB20,000,000
AR #20,000,0007T

Note: The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends
or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the respective company or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

1.TENMBRARER (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company Principal activity

NN )=
ERTRAEE/
EMEER A TEEH
2018 2017
70% 70%  Trading in mobile phones
BEVHES
51% - Trading in mobile phones

EEBHER

BT SEFE A1) BB LN AT W A B A A
2B AR A REMRRAS R
FHEHEFERAGHINE LREINE
B SED IR ZER

AN ) H ¥ #5 H Express Fortune Holdings
Limited# z + M EXFTR 2 P HAth i 2=
HMHARARIMERS -

B Express Fortune Holdings Limited= 2
EEABNSERIN L EFZEBINE
A SL BRI B4R o

EMBRRRFRRFRETMEFGEE
BT RE 5

ERAAPIEDESRRYANEE 2 EEH
BEFEEEARFEZARAMBAR-
EEZRA BIEMMBARZHBEES
EHERBRITE-
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42.

43.

44.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

Place of
Form of business incorporation/
Name of associate structure operation
BENTER BB HMAY BB
ERREGERBEERD A Incorporated PRC
(“Beijing Feiying”)
I RREGERRER R Ealilpav e
(MERRE])
Ever Trillion Investments Limited  Incorporated British Virgin Islands
Rl RBRIES

MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the financial
year.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

HEOMBEWEAR QA (“Sifa Mining”), a 50.8% owned
subsidiary, AT EREBAMXHEER 2 F (“Zhuhai
Reminda”), a 51% owned subsidiary, #7118 %z 8 &
BBRAF (“Zhejiang Aoying”), a 70% owned subsidiary
and EERZBEXREARAA (“Chongging Yuanjia”),
a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, have material
non-controlling interests (“NCI”). Summarised financial
information in relation to the NCI of Sifa Mining, Zhuhai
Reminda, Zhejiang Aoying and Chongqging Yuanjia, before
intra-group eliminations, are presented below:

42,

43.

44,

TENBELTER

T—+FE+-_f=+—

RZE—NFRZ
BNRFBOT:

SN L

Proportion of nominal

value of issued capital/

registered capital

held by the Group Principal activities

rEEEE
BRTRE/
AMEFEEZED L TEER
2018 2017
33.5% 20%  Trading in second-hand
mobile phones and
provision of marketing
services
EE_FHHEHER

REET5HEERS

42.86% 42.86%  Investment holding

RAER

EERRS RSN ZERE

RAMBFERERARR R R
FEZARRBEFFTNTEARAES
RERHEEEAED (THERIEE)Z
BEARS THHELH-

FEEFIMEE S

RRBHEAL0.8% BB E AL
HREBRAR ([BBBEXE]) HBES1%
BEZMBRRIKENEREZBAREBAE
RAR ([BREBERE]) HEH70%ERZ
B A B TR BRI ER AR ([Af
TRE ) REBS1%ER L IMBAREE
ERBERHBERAR ([EEER]) A
BRI ([PFIEdI sz ]) - B
MIBEEX KEERE MIRRLER
BRI EERNETRERRRREY
WA ZMBERMB25/0T
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44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Sifa Mining

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income

Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows generated from
financing activities

Net cash inflows

As at 31 December
Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated non-controlling interests

BE+-A=+—HLEE

FEEMN(ER)

2 WA

DREFETIEER
AL (EE)

AR HI R ST 2 LR

BE+-A=+-BLEE

RS ()
REnE

BEZBAGRERE

B mAFRE

R+=—A=+—-8H

mEEE

FERBEE

mEAE

B{EFHE

R IR H RS

44. FEHIMER (F)

EREE

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FiE T
4,740 (150,797)
8,216 (150,985)
2,332 (74,193)
79 (2,981)

= 3,103

79 122
3,643 5,181
(67,875) (77,628)
(64,232) (72,447)
(31,602) (35,644)
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44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

44. FEHIMER (F)

Zhuhai Reminda LR E
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
For the year ended 31 December BEt+t-A=+t—HLEE
Revenue W &= 60 717
Loss for the year FEBE (101) (1,666)
Total comprehensive income 2B U A 88 (1,886)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEEFEEH R 2 EBE (50) (816)
Dividends paid to NCI A 3 128 il 1 A 2 AN 2 AR B - -
For the year ended 31 December BZE+=-BA=1+—HLEE
Cash flows (used in)/generated from R (FrA)
operating activities FriSiRenE (152) 130
As at 31 December R+=—H=+—8
Current assets mENE E 1,022 1,238
Non-current assets ERBEE 217 228
Current liabilities mEEE (4,859) (5,174)
Net liabilities BEFHE (3,620) (3,708)
Accumulated non-controlling interests 2ET I B = (1,773) (1,817)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 44, I EIMRER (£)
Zhejiang Aoying MOT %
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHET
For the year ended 31 December BZ+=-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue Wz 133,752 983
Profit for the year FERF 926 3
Total comprehensive income FHEBA 807 3
Profit allocated to NCI DRI B MR R 2 R 278 1
Dividends paid to NCI [A) R4 I M 25 S 11 2 AR B - -
For the year ended 31 December BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
Cash flows generated from KEFEFEHRESME
operating activities 131 -
Cash flows used in investing activities REESFABRSRE 2) -
Net cash inflows WEmAFHRE 129 -
As at 31 December R+=—A=+-—-8
Current assets mENEE 3,470 3,422
Non-current assets EMEBEE 2 -
Current liabilities mEEE (302) (1,019)
Net assets BEFE 3,170 2,403
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEIES S 243 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —/\F+-_A=+—HILtFE

44. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Chonggqing Yuanjia

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows generated from

investing activities
Cash flows generated from

financing activities

Net cash outflows

As at 31 December
Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

44. FEHIMER (F)

EFERE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000

TExT FAT
BE+-A=+—HLEE
W &= 410 -
FEEHE (111) -
2HBUA (38) _
DEEIETEH MRS 2 BB (54) -
MRS T AN ZRE - -
BEZE+-A=1+—-BLEE
KEEBFTARSRE (10,320) -
BREZRHEREES RS

8,170 -
MEFTHMBRETE

5,700 -
Re Rt F5E (8,550) -
R+=-—BA=+-—-8H
REEE 35,692 -
ERBEE 5,666
REBAE (27,786) -
ERBEE (5,700)
BEFE 7,872 -
R IR 1 R 2 (19) -

45. #{t EHFE BB |k

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March
2019.

BANBRERR -E—AF=A -1+~
A B IR -



RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Write back of interest payables

Recovery of bad debts

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of inventories

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of mining right

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of prepayments paid to suppliers

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of prepayment paid to
a supplier

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Yogs
HERK

£

Hip oA Yoz BB E
HERD HERA
THER

DG ERR 2 ER
ENHEME

Yo ez ik
REERRZHEBR

RARHERERR
BIEER
FRBRER 2 REEE

REERREMRZ
BEEE
HAHERS 2

BN RERERZREER
mA—-BHER N
BN REERZ
REBERE
HENE ZIRF R E R
BHRHRZAEBR
BAMK

BTG DA (B18), /8 H
FEHER/ (Fx)

FE(BR) /8
FEfh

AREEBA
IR
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Financial Summary

MBME

E 4

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=1+-HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FTHET FET FHET THER
57,587 157,903 110,638 7,436 216,104
(49,027) (152,509) (108,801) (7,147) (213,966)
8,560 5,394 1,837 289 2,138
4,194 3,071 2,257 903 (1,223)
(10,408) (6,592) (2,645) (400) (11)
(30,040) (18,231) (15,242) (14,718) (14,928)
(1,369) (1,986) (905) 6) (647)
- - - - 11,922
- - - - 14,083
- - - - (1,221)
- (6,234) (6,340) (2,614) -
- - (84,240) (174,589) -
- - - (8,965) -
- - - (24,903) -
- - - - 363
- (2,767) (798) (1,627) (23)
(1,323) (1,302) (1,278) (1,208) -
(30,386) (28,647) (107,354) (227,838) 10,453
- - 21,059 41,116 (148)
(30,386) (28,647) (86,295) (186,722) 10,305
(24,482) (23,118) (49,807) (111,714) 7,799
(5,904) (5,529) (36,488) (75,008) 2,506
(30,386) (28,647) (86,295) (186,722) 10,305
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets EERE

Total liabilities BEEE

Equity attributable to owners of RARGEBAEGEZ
the Company

Non-controlling interests FEVE I R

EEREE

At 31 December

W+=—BA=+—-H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET FET FHET TER
402,354 354,834 246,543 44,876 85,245
(119,416) (111,880) (102,131) (50,927) (77,809)
282,938 242,954 144,412 (6,051) 7,436
195,872 165,373 106,663 31,409 40,587
87,066 77,581 37,749 (37,460) (33,151)
282,938 242,954 144,412 (6,051) 7,436
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